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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Med Life S.A.

Opinion

1.

We have audited the financial statements of Med Life S.A. (the Company), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2016, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2016, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"”) as adopted by EU.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards adopted by the
Chamber of Auditors of Romania, which are International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under this law and regulation are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Valuation of investments

Investments in other companies
represent 30% of the total assets of
the Company.

Management conducts impairment
tests on an annual basis or whenever
there is an indication of impairment to
assess the recoverability of the carrying
value of investments at standalone’
level. This is performed using
discounted cash flow models.

As disclosed in note 4, there are a
number of key sensitive judgements
made in determining the inputs into
these models which include:

>> Revenue growth

>> Operating margins and

>> The discount rates applied to the
projected future cash flows.
Accordingly, the impairment test of
these assets is considered to be a key
audit matter.

Management have engaged specialists
to assist with the determination of the
discount rates for the significant Cash
Generating Units to which the cost of

investment relates.

We focused our testing of the impairment of cost
of investments on the key assumptions made by
management.

Our audit procedures included:
>> Engaging our internal specialists to assist with:

—— Critically evaluating whether the model used
by management to calculate the value in use of
the individual Cash Generating Units complies with
the requirements of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

—— Evaluating the appropriateness of the
assumptions used to calculate the discount rates
and recalculating these rates.

>>We evaluated the future projected cash flows
used in the models to determine whether they are
reasonable and supportable given the current
economic climate and expected future
performance of the Cash Generating Unit.

>>We subjected the key assumptions to
sensitivity analyses.

>>We compared the projected cash flows,
including the assumptions relating to revenue
growth rates and operating margins, against
historical performance to evaluate reasonableness
of management’s projections.

We found that the assumptions used by
management were comparable with historical
performance and the expected future outlook and
the discount rates used were appropriate in the
circumstances.

Reporting requirements concerning the administrators’ report

5. The administrators are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the standalone
administrators’ report in accordance with the requirements of the Ministry of Public
Finance Order 2844/2016 for the approval of accounting regulations conforming with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by EU, article no. 20, which does
not contain material misstatements and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of administrator’s report that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The administrators’ report is presented from pages 1 to 9 and is not part of the financial

statements.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the administrators’ report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, we have read the administrators’
report accompanying the financial statements and presented from pages 1 to 9 and we
report as follows:

a) in the administrators’ report, we have not identified information which is not
consistent, in all material respects, with the information presented in the financial
statements attached;

b) the administrators’ report identified above contains, in all material respects, the
required information according to the provisions of Ministry of Public Finance Order no.
2844/2016 for the approval of accounting regulations conforming with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by EU, article no. 20 (accounting regulations
regarding annual standalone financial statements and annual consolidated financial
statements);

¢) based on our knowledge and understanding concerning the Company and its
environment gained during the audit on the financial statements prepared as at
December 31, 2016, we have not identified information included in the administrators’
report that contains a material misstatement of fact.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

6.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Order 2844/2016 for the approval of accounting regulations
conforming with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by EU and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related |
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

9.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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10. As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

- expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Farrukh
Khan.

Farrukh Khan, Audit Partner

For signature, please refer to the
original Romanian version.

Registered with the Chamber of Financial Auditors of Romania
under certificate no. 1533/25.11.2003

On behalf of:
DELOITTE AUDIT S.R.L.
Registered with the Chamber of Financial Auditors of Romania

under certificate no. 25/25,06.2001

Bucharest, Romania
March 24, 2017



MED LIFE S.A.

INDIVIDUAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2016

(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

ASSETS

LONG TERM
Intangible assets
Tangible fixed assets
Financial fixed assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Deferred tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Receivables

Receivables from group companies
Other receivables

Cash at bank and in hand

PREPAYMENTS
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

LIABILITIES &SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade accounts payable
Overdraft

Current portion of lease liability
Current portion of long term debt
Payables to group companies
Current tax liabilities

Other liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Lease liability

Long term debt

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liability

TOTAL LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements.

Notes 2016 2015 2014
5 7,207,187 9,277,713 7,540,215
5 160,173,512 154,874,330 137,126,470
4 97,537,556 60,610,713 57,841,916

264,918,255 224,762,756 202,508,601

6 6,399,887 5,489,363 3,794,206
7 29,344,895 32,797,740 29,522,684
21 25,542,850 20,118,082 18,664,572
816,077 370,545 £70,809

8 13,959,191 1,337,365 3,563,728
76,062,900 60,113,095 56,215,999

9 2,724,058 2,104,708 2,453,817
78,786,958 62,217,803 58,669,816
343,705,213 286,980,559 261,178,417

10 65,327,621 57,083,609 49,454,448
13 - 15,220,000 15,582,209
12 4,374,976 4,409,127 837,914
13 11,214,325 11,272,281 10,123,354
21 2,749,739 3,289,131 3,439,562
1,180,971 1,093,214 79,083

11 10,750,318 6,913,243 6,251,268
95,597,950 99,280,605 85,767,838

12 5,767,198 9,747,072 1,631,313
13 142,653,683 76,479,677 83,981,224
148,420,881 86,226,749 85,612,537

22 10,785,523 10,831,279 10,831,279
254,804,354 196,338,633 182,211,654

6



INDIVIDUAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2016

MED LIFE S.A.

(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
Issued capital

Reserves

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

Notes 2016 2015 2014
14 13,932,034 13,932,034 13,932,034
15 72,708,768 66,696,982 62,983,395

2,260,057 10,012,910 2,051,334
88,900,859 90,641,926 78,966,763
88,900,859 90,641,926 78,966,763

343,705,213 286,980,559 261,178,417

A\pproved by the Board of Directors on the date of March 24, 2017 and signed on behalf of by:

AY

N

Mihail Marcu,
Administrator

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements.

2

~

Vera Firu,

Director Economic
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MED LIFE S.A.

INDIVIDUAL STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2016

(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

SALES
Other operating revenues

OPERATING INCOME
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING PROFIT

Finance cost
Other financial expenses

FINANCIAL RESULT

RESULT BEFORE TAXES
Income tax expense

NET RESULT

Year ended
December 31,

Year ended
December 31,

Other comprehensive income items that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gain / Loss on revaluation of properties

Deferred tax on other comprehensive income

components

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes 2016 2015
16 341,731,549 291,014,966
17 3,924,743 3,491,875

345,656,292 294,506,841

18 (338,693,007) (269,012,931)
6,963,285 25,493,910

(9,403,108) (7,528,966)

(4,504,633) (3,729,965)

21 (13,907,741) (11,258,931)
(6,944,456) 14,234,979

22 (808,397) (2,559,816)
(7,752,853) 11,675,163

15 7,156,888 =
22 (1,145,102) =
6,011,786 -
(1,741,067) 11,675,163

A;?proved by the Board of Directors on the date of March 24, 2017 and signed on behalf of by:
[

{ = \
\ A )Y

]

Mihail Marcu,
Administrator

Vera Firu,
Director Economic

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements.
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MED LIFE S.A.
INDIVIDUAL STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

Year ended
December 31,

Year ended
December 31,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements.

9

Note 2016 2015

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / Loss before tax (6,944,456) 14,234,979
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 5,18 25,052,345 17,847,835
Interest expense 20 9,403,108 7,528,966
Interest revenues 20 (390,842) (342,300)
Allowance for doubtful debts and receivables

written-off 7 7,865,835 214,477
Financial discounts 20 3,052,445 2,804,052
Allowance for other current assets 109,041 -
Unrealized exchange gain / loss 20 1,843,030 1,268,213
Other non-monetary gains 17 (2,000,000) (2,550,000)
Net gain on disposal of property = (57,292)
Operating cash flow before working capital

changes 37,990,506 40,948,930
Increase in accounts receivable (8,415,850) (5,993,320)
Increase in inventories (1,019,565) (1,695,157)
Decrease / {(Increase) in prepayments (619,350) 349,109
Increase in accounts payable 11,311,143 7,409,564
Cash generated from operations 39,246,884 41,019,126
Income tax paid (1,911,498) (1,545,685)
Interest paid (9,201,752) (7,498,800)
Interest received 390,842 342,300
Net cash flow from operating activities 28,524,476 32,316,941
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of shares in other companies 4 (35,439,932) (2,668,680)
Purchase of intangible assets 5 (2,032,974) (1,367,978)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 (16,384,516) (16,293,900)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets = 57,292
Loans granted 21 (5,424,768) (1,553,627)
Net cash used in investing activities (59,282,190) (21,826,893)
Cash flow from financing activities
Increase in bank loans 73,205,669 1,938,768
Payment of bank loans (24,354,005) (9,951,975)
Payments of financial leasing (4,932,732) (4,552,773)
Decrease in loans from group companies 21 (539,392) (150,431)



MED LIFE S.A.
INDIVIDUAL STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
Note 2016 2015

Net cash generated by/ (used in) financing
activity 43,379,540 (12,716,411)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 12,621,826 (2,226,363)
Cash and cash equivalents opening balance 8 1,337,365 3,563,728
Cash and cash equivalents closing balance 8 13,959,191 1,337,365

- Approved by the Board of Directors on the date of March 24, 2017 and signed on behalf of by:

{

O e
Mihail Marcu, Vera Firu,
Administrator Director Economic

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements.
10
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Med Life S.A. ("Med Life” or the "Company”) is a joint-stock company incorporated in 1996, in
accordance with the laws and regulations of Romania. The Company’s activity resides in the
performance of healthcare services activities through medical centres located in Bucharest,
Cluj, Timisoara, lasi, Galati and Constanta.

Med Life Group is offering a large range of medical service having opened 17 Hyperclinics in
Bucharest, Timisoara, Brasov, Arad, Iasi, Galati, Craiova, Cluj and Constanta; 8 hospitals -
located in Bucharest, Arad and Brasov, 19 Medical Centers and 24 Laboratories for analysis, as
well as 3 maternity hospitals. The Group has also more than 140 private Clinic partners around
Romania.

Med Life is one of the leading health care services providers in Romania, having a significant
market share at a national level. ’

The registered office of Med Life is located in Bucharest, Calea Grivitei, no. 365.

Details of Med Life SA’s subsidiaries at December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and December
31, 2014 are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest
and voting power held

December December
Principal Place of Decembe;o:iliﬁ, 31, 31,
Name of subsidiary  Activity operation 2015 2014
Policlinica de . n Brasov, 3 o o
1 Diagnostic Rapid SA Medical Services Romania 80.01% 80.01% 80.01%
2 Medapt SRL Medical Services Eganf‘a"r’\;a 80.01% 80.01% 80.01%
3 Histo SRL Medical Services Ega;‘a"r’l'ia 48.01% 48.01% 48.01%
Policlinica de Sfantu
4 Diagnostic Rapid Medical Services Gheorge, 64.01% 64.01% 64.01%
Medis SRL Romania
5 Bahtco Invest S.A. DEVEllmETE O I, 100% 100% 100%
building projects Romania
Medsanrom SRL (Med . ) Bucharest, o .
6 (ife Ocupational SrL) ~ Medical Services Romania 100% SO 100
Distribution of
) Pharmaceutical Bucharest, g 3 9
7 Pharmalife Med SRL Products in specialised Romania 100% 100% 100%
stores
Asilife Insurance Bucharest, o a o
8 Broker SRL Insurance broker Romania 95% 95% 95%
. o Bucharest,
9 Accipiens Rental activities " 550, 55% 55%
. ; Bucharest, 8
10 Genesys SRL Medical services Romania 55% 55% 55%
Distribution of
A Pharmaceutical Bucharest, o 0 @
11 Biofarm Farmec SRL Products in specialised Romania 55% 55% 55%
stores
12 RUR Medical Services  Medical services Bucharest, 100% 100% 100%
13 Biotest Med Medical Services Bucharest 100% 100% 100%
14 Vital Test Medical Services Bucharest 100% 100% 100%
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MED LIFE S.A.

NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

1.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS (continued)

During the year 2015, the Company also acquired control of the following companies:

Proportion of ownership interest
and voting power held

December December December
Name of Principal Place of 31, 31, 31,
subsidiary Activity operation 2016 2015 2014
Agis 2000 Other Arad
15 SRL healthcare - = 55% -
o . Romania
(indirectly) services
Other
Bactro SRL Deva, o a _
16 (Indirectly) heal.thcare Romania 55% 55%
services
Centrul . )
17 Medical USrllEE Il 55% 55% :
Services Romania
Sama S.A.
Other )
Ultratest Craiova, o ~
18 S A, heal;hcare Romania 55% 55%
services

Med Life has indirect control over Agis 2000 SRL and Bactro SRL as they were acquired by one
of Med Life’s subsidiaries — Genesys Medical Clinic SRL. Agis 2000 SRL was disposed of in

2016.

During the year 2016, the Company also acquired control of the following companies:

Proportion of ownership interest
and voting power held

Principal Place of December 31, December 31,

Name of subsidiary Activity operation 2016 2015
1 Diamed Center SRL Medical Services EXIEFES,

Romania 100% =

. . . . Craiova,

2 Prima Medical SRL Medical Services Romania 100% _
R . Timisoara,

3 Stem Cells Bank SA Medical Services Romania 60% _
. Dental healthcare Bucharest,

S [PERE E5eEt GRS activities Romania 60% =
Centrul Medical Medical Services Bucharest,

Panduri Romania 90%

One of the companies acquired in 2016,
companies as described below:

Dent Estet Clinic SA also owns the following

Proportion of ownership interest and
voting power held by Dent Estet Clinic

SA
Principal Place of December 31,
Name of subsidiary Activity operation 2016
0,
Green Dental Clinic SRL Derjt_all healthcare Buchar_est, 51%
activities Romania
. . Dental healthcare Bucharest,
i & (e SR activities Romania 52%
Dental healthcare Bucharest,
e AR activities Romania 51.61%
. Dental healthcare Bucharest,
Dentestet Kids activities Romania 52.94%
Dental healthcare Bucharest,
(EPE0 (LElSebElel (D activities Romania 75 %
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

2.1

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs)

Initial application of new amendments to the existing standards and
interpretation effective for the current reporting period

The following standards, amendments to the existing standards and new interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the EU are effective
for the current period:

Amendments to IFRS 10 “Financial statements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities” and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” -
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception - adopted by the EU on 22
September 2016 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016),

Amendments to IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” - Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations - adopted by the EU on 24 November 2015 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016),

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” - Disclosure Initiative
- adopted by the EU on 18 December 2015 (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016),

Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” and IAS 38 “Intangible
Assets” - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation - adopted
by the EU on 2 December 2015 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016),

Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” and IAS 41
“Agriculture” - Bearer Plants - adopted by the EU on 23 November 2015 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016),

Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions - adopted by the EU on 17 December 2014 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 February 2015),

Amendments to IAS 27 “Separate Financial Statements” - Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements - adopted by the EU on 18 December 2015 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016),

Amendments to various standards “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2010-2012)"
resulting from the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13,
IAS 16, IAS 24 and IAS 38) primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording - adopted by the EU on 17 December 2014 (amendments are to be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2015),

Amendments to various standards “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2012-2014)"
resulting from the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 19 and IAS
34) primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording - adopted by
the EU on 15 December 2015 (amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016).

The adoption of these amendments to the existing standards and interpretation has not led to
any material changes in the Company’s financial statements.
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (continued)

2.2 Amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB and adopted by the EU
but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following new standards and
amendments to standards issued by IASB and adopted by the EU are not yet effective:

» IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - adopted by the EU on 22 November 2016 (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018},

e IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and amendments to IFRS 15
“Effective date of IFRS 15" - adopted by the EU on 22 September 2016 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

The Company has elected not to adopt these new standards and amendments to existing
standards in advance of their effective dates. The Company anticipates that the adoption of
these standards and amendments to existing standards will have no material impact on the
financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application.

2.3 New standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB but
not yet adopted by the EU

At present, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not significantly differ from regulations adopted by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) except for the following new standards
and amendments to the existing standards, which were not endorsed for use in EU as at the
date of publication of financial statements (the effective dates stated below is for IFRS in full}:

« IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016) - the European Commission has decided not to launch the
endorsement process of this interim standard and to wait for the final standard,

o IFRS 16 “Leases” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

o Amendments to IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” - Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018),

¢« Amendments to IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” - Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 or when IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” is applied first time),

¢« Amendments to IFRS 10 “Financial statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in
Assaciates and Joint Ventures” - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture and further amendments (effective date deferred
indefinitely until the research project on the equity method has been concluded),

+ Amendments to IFRS 15 “"Revenue from Contracts with Customers” - Clarifications
to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018),

» Amendments to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” - Disclosure Initiative (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017),
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (continued)

2.3 New standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB but
not yet adopted by the EU (continued)

+ Amendments to IAS 12 “Income Taxes” - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

¢ Amendments to IAS 40 “Investment Property” - Transfers of Investment Property
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

» Amendments to various standards “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2014-2016)"
resulting from the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28)
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording (amendments to
IFRS 12 are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and
amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018),

e« IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

The Company anticipates that the adoption of these new standards and amendments to the
existing standards will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company in
the period of initial application.

According to the Company’s estimates, the application of hedge accounting to a portfolio of
financial assets or liabilities pursuant to IAS 39: “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” would not significantly impact the financial statements, if applied as at the
balance sheet date.
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements of
the Company are set out below.

3.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting
Standards for Financial Reporting ("IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Union ("EU").

Additionally, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Order 2844/2016
for the approval of accounting regulations conforming with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by EU with subsequent amendments.

3.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
revaluation of certain non-current assets and financial instruments. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

These financial statements have been prepared to serve the Company as statutory financial
statements.

The Company maintains its accounting records in Romanian Lei ("RON") and prepares its
statutory financial statements in accordance with the Regulations on Accounting and Reporting
issued by the Ministry of Finance in Romania. The accompanying financial statements are
based on the statutory records of the individual entities and have been adjusted to present the
financial statements in accordance with IFRS.

3.3 Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the
Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The Company will continue its activity according to the normal course of business in
the foreseeable future without encountering the impossibility of continuing its activity or
without the significant decrease of its activity.

3.4 Accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and revenue and
expenses for the period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.5 Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Romanian Leu ("RON"), which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (its “functional currency”).

As at December 31, 2016 the exchange rate was of 4.3033 RON for 1 USD and of 4.5411 RON
for 1 EUR. As at December 31, 2015 the exchange rate was of RON 4.1477 for 1 USD and of
RON 4.5245 for 1 EUR.

The monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency as of reporting date have been
converted from EUR to RON at the closing exchange rate as announced by the National Bank of
Romania.

3.6 Comparative information

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in
presentation in the current year.

3.7 Investments in other companies

Med Life has significant investments in other companies. The investments are presented at
cost less impairment. Management conducts annual testing or whenever there is an indication
of impairment to assess whether any impairment losses should be recognized.

3.8 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the supply of services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the balance sheet at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

The value of land and buildings owned presented in these financial statements is based on the
valuation reports which were performed as of December 31, 2016 by independent valuators
certified by ANEVAR. The revaluation is performed with sufficient regularity as to ensure that
the Company presents land and buildings at fair value in the financial statements.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income during the financial period in
which they incur. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset
when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard
of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Company. Major renovations are
depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset. Freehold land is not
depreciated.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the amounts of property, plant and equipment on a straight-line
basis down to the assets’ estimated residual values. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

3.9 Assets held under finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

Years
Buildings 10 - 50 years
Plant and equipment 3 - 15 years
Fixtures and fittings 3 - 15 years

3.10 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each
annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The Company’s intangible assets are represented by software licenses which are amortized
straight-line over a period of three years.

De-recognition of intangible assels

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.13 Intangible assets (continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing

value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories
comprises of all the costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, being valued on a first in first out basis. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. The Company applies FIFO as a costing method.

3.12 Trade receivables

Receivables are stated in the balance sheet at anticipated realizable value. An allowance for
impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the collection terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the allowance is determined
based on Management risk assessment of the trade receivables collectability.

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the

statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash held at call
with banks with original maturities of three months or less.
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.14 Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other
payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value plus, for instruments
not at fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction cost. Fair value is
the amount for which a financial instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable and
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

3.15 Accounts payable

Liabilities for trade payables are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

3.16 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets of the Company at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are charged directly to profit or loss. Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

3.17 Borrowing costs

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received
less directly attributable transaction costs. The transaction costs incurred in issuing the liability
are amortized over the life of the loan.

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method; any difference between fair value of the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized as interest
expense over the period of the borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the combined income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also
recognized directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognized directly in equity.

3.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in equity
in the period in which they are declared.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.20 Share premiums

Share premiums are own funds created as a resuit of the difference between the issue value of
the shares and the nominal value of the shares. The Company recorded share premiums as a
result of the issue of shares.

3.21 Revaluation reserve

The increases in the fair value of land and buildings are recorded against revaluation reserves.
Any decreases in the fair value of land and buildings are first deducted from the revaluation
reserves and then the difference is recorded through profit and loss accounts. The revaluation
is performed with sufficient regularity as to ensure that the Company presents land and
buildings at fair value in the financial statements.

3.22 Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result
of a past event and it is probable that there will be a future outflow of resources in order to
extinguish this liability. Provisions for risks and charges are assessed at the end of each period
and adjusted in order to present management’s best estimate.

3.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Rendering of services

Sales of services are recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered,
by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual
service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided. The Company does not
operate any customer loyalty program.

The Company is rendering health care medical services to corporate and retail customers.
Corporate customers revenues are recognized based on monthly prevention packages at the
end of the month at the level of the agreed value for the each prevention package. Revenues
for retail customers are recognized when the services are actually rendered.

Interest revenues
Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future

cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.24 Employee benefits
Employee benefits

The Company, in the normal course of business, makes payments to the Romanian State on
behalf of its employees for pensions, health care and unemployment cover. The cost of these
payments is charged fo the income statement in the same period as the related salary cost.

All employees of the Company are members of the Romanian State pension plan. The
Company does not operate any other pension scheme.

3.25 Related parties

The relationships between the entities and the company are special when one of the parties
has the ability to directly control or significantly influence the other party, by using ownership,
contractual rights, family relationships or any other means.

Related parties also include individuals which are principal owners, management or members
of the Company’s Board of Directors, as well as the members of their families,

These financial statements have been prepared based on the fact that the parties have entered
into arm’s length transactions with the entities within the Company and according to
objectively established prices.

3.26 Fair value

As described above, certain accounting policies of the Company and information presentation
criteria require determination of the fair value both for the assets and the liabilities of the
Company. In determining the fair value of assets and liabilities, the Company uses as much as
possible observable market values. Fair values are classified on various levels based on inputs

used in valuation techniques, as follows:
o Level 1: (unadjusted) quoted prices on active markets for identical assets and liabilities
e Level 2: inputs, other than the prices included in fevel 1,which are observable for assets
and liabilities, either directly (e.g.: prices) or indirectly (e.g.: derived from prices)
« Level 3: inputs for evaluation of assets and liabilities which are not based on observable
market data.

The fair values were assessed for evaluation or presentation of information based on the
methods and techniques described below.

Fair value was assessed for land and buildings owned as of December 31, 2016 based on
evaluators reports. The fair value of land was established based on market value approach.
The fair value for buildings was established based on cost of replacement approach.

3.27 Subsequent events

The effect of significant subsequent events, after the reporting period, which supplies
additional information regarding the financial position of the Company and require adjustments
are reflected in the balance sheet or profit and loss, if the case. The significant events that do
not require adjustments are disclosed in the notes of the separate financial statements.
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3.28. TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The present financial statements are the first set of financial statements prepared by the
Company in accordance with IFRS. In preparing these financial statements the opening
statement of financial position was prepared as of January 1, 2014 (the transition date).

In preparing its opening IFRS balance sheet as at 1 January 2015 and the balance sheet as
at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016, the Company has adjusted amounts reported
previously in financial statements prepared with MOF 1802/2014 with subsequent
amendments. An explanation of how the transition from MOF 1802/2014 with subsequent
amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) has affected the
Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following
tables and notes that accompany the tables.

The effect of transition to International Financial Reporting standards (“IFRS”), are
summarized below:

1. Reconciliation of equity and other comprehensive income as previously been reported
under MOF 1802/2014 with subsequent amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“"IFRS");

1I. Reconciliation of statement of financial position as previously been reported under
the MOF 1802/2014 with subsequent amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS");

III. Reconciliation of Statement of comprehensive income as previously reported under
MOF 1802/2014 with subsequent amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“"IFRS")

IV.  Adjustments for Cash flow statement.

1. Reconciliation of equity and other comprehensive income and other
comprehensive income as previously been reported under MOF 1802/2014 with
subsequent amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards (“"IFRS")

December 31, December 31, January 1,

Reconciliation of equity Note
2015 2014 2014

Equity reported in accordance with
MOF 1802/2014 as amended 101,896,181 90,221,017 81,160,364
Adjustments arising from the

transition to IFRS:

Adjustments required by IAS 12 a) (10,088,661) (10,088,661) (10,088,661)
Reclassification adjustments

related to reserves b) (1) - (9,541)
Timing differences c) (1,165,593) (1,165,593) (596,552)
Equity reported in accordance with

International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRS") 90,641,926 78,966,763 70,465,610
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

3.28 TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

I, Reconciliation of equity and other comprehensive income and other
comprehensive income as previously been reported under MOF 1802/2014 with
subsequent amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")
(continued)

Reconciliation of other comprehensive e December 31, December 31,
ote
income 2015 2014
RON RON
Comprehensive income presented in accordance
67,101,173 67,308,173
with MOF 1802/2014 as amended
Adjustments resulting from recognition of deferred
a) (10,088,661) (10,088,661)
tax
Comprehensive income presented in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards 57,012,512 57,012,512
("IFRS")
Notes

a) The Company’s accounting policy is to record land and buildings owned at fair value
and thus recorded on IFRS retrospectively the revaluation reserve related to land
and buildings at fair value. This generated a temporary difference and according to
IAS 12 a deferred tax for revaluation reserve was recorded (impact of RON
10,898,954). Additionally, since the Company capitalised additional items for IFRS
purposes, the different carrying value generated a difference in terms of revaluation
reserves (impact of RON 810,293).

b) For IFRS purposes, the Company transferred the reserve of RON 9,541 to retained
earnings retrospectively before January 1, 2014.

c¢) The Company capitalised for IFRS purposes certain items which met IAS 16
capitalization criteria. This generated a difference in terms of retained earnings and a
difference in depreciation.

28



6¢

ZTOT' V6T EVT TheLTT 095'990°¢¥T
126°ZVS'T9 981'ST SEPLTS'TO
025'620°C - 0Zs'620°C
TOV'ETS 09 98t°'ST St6'/8Y'09
0z8'88."% (81t) 8c7'68L™Y
uol3edlyisse|oaYy 88/'86¢ POS'vLT $82'v2T
££5°298'07 = ££6°798'0¢
uo13ed1ISSe Y ££0'vHS'0¢ (080'61) 6T1'€95'0¢
uonedLyIsse|day L2T'vT6'E (vr15'621) TPL'€40'Y
182'1S9°08T 991201 szi'6bs’08T
99/7¢/97/ Y - 99/7¢497LY
pazijejided swall PP ELP'9TT 981201 (8T'T/E'92T
Z/0'v0S'9 - Z7/0'v05'9
SH4dI dVvD jedo
U Wo) PT10T PT0T
‘1 Adenuer ‘SY4T 03 uonIsuead} ‘1 Aenuer

SL13IASSY IVLOL
S13SSY LNIWUND TV10Ll

SLINIWAVd3dd

puBY Ul pue xueq e ysed
S9]qRAIDIBI JOYI0

soluedwod dnoab wody ss|genlsisy
SETe =TV ERlN|

SDM0JUBAU]

S13ISSVY LNIHAND

S13SSV LNIYUNDI-NON TV.1O0L

S}9SSe paxly |eidueuld
s1asse paxiy a|qibuel
s19sse 9|qibuejug
WYy3L ODNO1

S13ISSsY

(,,SH41I.) spiepuels Buipioday [eIDURUI] [RUONRUIDIUT 0} SJUSWPUSWE Juanbasgns
yum $I0Z/Z08T 40W 9yl J19pun pajplodas usaq Afsnoiraid se uonisod [epueul) Jo JUSWDIEIS JO UOIIBI[IDUOIDY 'lI

(panunuod) SQYVANV.LS ONILYOdIY TVIONVNI4 TVNOILVNUILNI OL NOILISNVIL "S8Z'E

(paypads asimiaylo ssajun ‘NOY Ul passa.idxs ale sjunowe ayj ||e)
9T0T ‘TE€ YIAWADIA dIANT YVIA FHL 04
SLINIWI1VLS TYIONVNIL TVNAIAIANI 3HL Ol S31O0N
V'S 3417 daN



0¢

TOTV6T'Ebe Zv9’LTT 095'990°cbT ALIND3 ANV SITLINIEVIT1IVLOL
019'59v°0L (rss'v69°0T) r9c£‘091'18 ALINO3I 1VLOL
0T9's9v'0L (rSL'v69°0T) +9c'09T'T8 Auedwo)
9Y3 jo sidumo o] afqeinqLiyie Aunby
Adijod uonezijendes juatayig (S€57069°T) (2557965) (€86°€60'T) sbuluies pauiejay
1D0 104 paxooq xel paddajeq TT1T1'42T’'8S (coz’860'0T) €1€'22E'89 SanlosaYy
PEOTEBET = PEO'CER'ET [elides panssy
AlInd3 S, ¥3ATOHIUVHS
T6S'8CLTLT 96£'7Z8’0T 961906191 SIILITIAVIT IVLOL
sesodund S¥4I 0S87ZE6'0T 0887/£6'0T - Ayligel xey padiageq
10J AJuo pax00q Xe)} padlajeq
S£6'00T°C8 901'TT 678'680°Z8 SAILITIIVIT WY3L-DNOT IV1O0L
0Z870/07¢8 - 0¢8'0/07Z8 1g8p wia] BuoT
uoneoyissesy STT/0E 90T'TT 60061 Anjiqelf eses
193Q Wi3l ONO1
£08'689°6/4 (095°9¢T) £9€79T8%6L
uoneoyissePay 08€'€19°¢ (9€07STT) 9Tv'82/°E sanijiqell Joy10
10820 - 108'20p Soll|igel| Xe) Juaaind
S2$'908'9 = S2¥'908’9 sajuedwod dnouf o] ss|qeded
9ZL'SSL LT (619) SY1'9S2°LT 1gep W) Buol yo uonod jusiind
uonesIssepay ££E'T0E (sot'tT) 8EP'ZIE Ayjiqel} 9ses| Jo uondod Jusiind
8GE'ZS6TT - 85£'ZS6'TT HeIpiano
v82'158'8¢ - ¥8/'/58'8¢ 2|qeAed sjunodde sped),
SITLITIAVIT LNIHIND
[}-Els dYVvo |eD07
v10Z +10T
Jjuwwe) T Adenuer SYUA4I 03 uonIsuedl ‘1 Alenuer
{penunuod) (,,syd1,.) spiepuels buijioday Jepueuly [euoljewIdlUT 0} S}UBWPpPUBWeE Jusanbasqns
Uyiim ._V.HON\NOwH 40 2Y3 Jopun _uwu._onw._ uL9aq >_m30_>w._n_ se :O_u_mcn_ [eidUuRUl} JO Jjudwajlels 30 uUonelIduoday 1

(PenunRUod) SAUVANVLS DNILYOJIY TVIONVNI4 TYNOILYNYILNI OL NOILISNVYL "8C'€

(pa11dads asimiaylo ssajun ‘NOY Ul passaidxa a.1e sjunolue ayj [|B)

9T0Z ‘T€ ¥39dW3D3A AIAN3 YVIA FHL ¥Od
SINIWIALVLS TVIONVNId TVNAIAIANI 3HL OL S3LON
V'S 3417 A3



L€

LIP'8LT'TOC (z11'S68) 6CS'€LS'T9C SL13ISSVY TvLOL
918’6998 STTVYZE T69'sH£'85 SLISSV LNIHAND TV.LOL
L18'ESH'T - L18'eSt’T SIN3IWAVd3Yd
666'G1Z'95 ST1'vCE v/8'1687sS
uonieoyissenay 8¢/'€95’¢ (61%) AR IS puey uj pueueq e ysed
uolieayissepay 608'0£9 S5 74 $97'9vE S3|geAIRD3l J3YI0
2/5'%99'8T = 2/5'%99'8T soluedwod dnoab wolj sa|qeAaladay
uoljeoyisseoay 8922562 6¥6'LY SEL'vLv6T S9|qRAI209Y
uonedyIssedsy 90Z'v6L'E (0s6'/LY) 9ST'Zh8’E S2I10JUSAU]
S1ASSY INIHUND
T09'805'202 (z£2'61L) 8€8°LTZ'0T S13SSVY LNIHUND-NON 1V.LOL
uonedissepay 9T6'TH8°/S 1219 §6/4'5€8/8 s}8sse paxy [eldueulq
Adtjod 0/+'92T /€T (8s¢'s2s) 878'TS8'/ET sissse paxy o|qibue]
uonezijeyded juatayg
ST2'0PS'L - STZ'OPS'L syesse a|qibueiug
WY3L DNO1
sLassv
SU-I dvvD jesoq
v1o¢C y10Z
uswuwao) rnm A3quiadag S¥4I 03 uonisues | \.nm Jaquiada(
(penunuod) (,,sy41,.) splepueis Buijioday |euUeUL] [RUOJRUISIUT 0} sju3wpuawe juanbasqns
yimm ._u.nON\Now.n 40W 2y} J19pun _uwu._On_WL usaq >_m30_>w‘_n_ se :O_u_mon jepueulj jo jusuullels JO Uoneljinuoday 1

(PenupUod) SAYVANVLS ONILYOdIN TVIINYNIS TVNOILVNNILNI OL NOILISNVIL "SZ'S

(payiads asimIayjo ssajun ‘NOY ul passaidxa ale sjunowe syj |je)
9107 ‘T€ ¥39W3D3d AIAN3 AVIA FHIL ¥O4
SLNIWILVLS TVIONVNIH TVNAIAIANI 3HL OL SILON
V'S 34117 dINW



ce

LTP'8LTT9T (zt1's6g) 6CSELS TOT ALINdD3 ANV S3LLITISVI] 1V1O0l
€9/'996'8L (ysz'vse'tT) LT0'1ZZ'06 ALINDSI (vioL
€9£'996'8L (bSTPST'TT) £LT0°'122°06 Aueduwo) ay3 jo sioumo 03 sjqeinquiie Aynbz
Adijod +£€71507¢ (€68759T7T) /26'91T°¢ sBuluies paujelay
uonezijejides jualsylg
120 104 S6£°€86'79 (199'880°01) 950°z£0°sL SaAI95DY
pe)00qg xe] patlalag
Pe0‘CE6'ET = PEQ'CEB'ET |endes penss]
ALIND3 S UIAQTOHIUVHS
YS9'T1Z 8T ZPT'698°0T TIS'TSETLT SIILITIGVIT IviOoL
S¥4I 10) Ajuo 6/27T£870T 6/2'T£8°0T - Auiger] xe3 palajeq
pa)0oq Xej} padisjad
LES'TT9'SS - LES'TTO'SS SIAILINIGVIT WYIL-O9NO1T TVLIOL
$227°186°¢€8 S 27’1868 199p wua) Buod
€TETE9T = £T€'1E9T Aljiger) ssesn
1930 Wd31 DNO1
8€8'£9/°S8 £98°/2 SL6'6£L'S8
uonedISSeRdY 8971529 787'8¢C 986'C¢C’9 sanl(igel] J2Yio
£80°6¢ = £80°'6/ Sanl|Igel| Xe3 ua4dnd
795'6EP'E = 795'65P’E ssjuedwod dnolb o) sajgeieq
uonediyisse|day $SE'EeT’oT (6T¥) €//°€2T/0T 1g8p wus) Buo| Jo uoiod Jualind
r16'2€8 = $16°L£8 Anjiqe)| sses| o uoilod Jusiind
602'785'ST - 607'785°ST HelpisaQ
8v¥ ' vSH 6t = 8Yb'PSb 61 8|qeAed sjunosde aped].
SITITITIAVIT LNIYUND
sydl dVYyD |edoq
sjuswwo) 102 PT0T
Tg Jaquiadaqg SY4I 01 uonIsues} ‘T€ 1Oquadeqg
(panunuod) (,,sy41,) spiepuels bunsoday |edueuld [BUOIIRUISIUT O] sjuswpuauwe juanbasqgns
Yum $10Z/Z08T 4O0W @Yyl Jspun papodas usaq Ajsnoinsid se uonisod [elpueUl} JO JUSWISIEIS JO UOIIRI[IDUODDY I

(PenuRUOd) SAYVANVLS ONILYOJIY TVIONVNI4 TYNOILYNYILNI OL NOILISNVYIL '8T°E

(peypads asimiaylo ssajun ‘NOY Ul passalidxa a1e sjunowe ayj [je)
9T0T ‘T€ ¥39dW3ID3A AIANT dVIA IHL HO4d
SINIAWILVLS TVIONVNIH TVNAIAIANI FHL OL SILON
V'S 341171 a3



€e

655'086'98¢2 (sz6'zzv) YES'E0P'L8T S13ISSY 1VLOL
€08'L1Z'29 L¥S’'68T 95787619 S13ISSV LNIHUND TV.LOL
80L'v0T'T = 804'v0T°C SLINIWAVdIAUd

S60'STT1'09 LbS 68T 8vS'cT8’'6S
SEISAX = SoE7/€E’T puey ul pue jueq je ysep
uonesyissepay SHS'0/E 95’682 666'08 S3|qeAlsdad 1sylo
Z80°811'02 = 280°8171°02 saiuedwod dnolb wol) sejqeAlsdsy
uoIRDISSeORY Ob/ L64'2E 60L'€TT TE0'$¥89'CE S3|qeAnlsdsy
uoneolISsePaY £9£°68H°S (8os'¢ct11) T1/0°€09°S SalI0juaAU]
S13SSVY LNIHAUND
9S8/4'29.'vTT (zzs‘zts) 8LT'S/LY'STT S13ISSVY LNIHUND-NON TV.LOL
€12°019°09 = £12'019°09 S}9sSe paxly |BiduUBUl4
Adtjod 0£E'b/8'pST (zes'zis) 758'985'sST sjesse paxy s|qibue]

uonezijeydes juataylqg

€14'247'6 = €12'147'6 sysse a|qibueiul
WY31 9NO1
S13dSSvY

SyUdl dvvD |edoq

STO0Z STOZ
sjusWIWo) ‘T€ 18quiadag SY4I 03 uonlisue.s| ‘T Jaquiadaqg

(panunuod) (,,sy41.) spiepueis Bunoday [epueuly jRUOIIRUIBIUT 0} sjuawipuawe yuanbasqns
Yum $T0Z/Z0ST JOW 9y} Japun papuodad ussq Asnoinaid se uonjsod [eloueUly JO lUBWSIEIS JO UOoIIEI[PU0IIY 1

(Penunuod) SAQYVANVLS DNILYOJIY TVIONVNI4 TYNOILVNYILNI OL NOILISNVYL "8Z'¢

(paydads asimiayjo sssjun ‘NOY Ul passaidxo ale syunowe ayj [[8)
9707 ‘T€ ¥IdW3D34d AIANT ¥VIA THL ¥O4
SINIWILVILS TVIONVNIA TVNAIAIANI 3HL OL S3LON
V'S 3417 dINW



ve

655°086°98¢C (ss6'zZh) ves‘eob’L8¢C ALIND3 ANV SITLITIGVIT 1VLOL
9Z6'Tv9'06 (ssz'psTTT) I81°968'T0T ALINd3 TviOoL
9Z6'1+9'06 (ssT'vST'TT) T8T'968°T0T Auedwo) ays jo sisumo 03 a[qeinquiiie Ajnbg
Adijod QT6'CT00T (£6578917T) £0S'8/1°TT sBuluies pauleisy
uonezijeyded jualaylqg
ID0 40J 286'969'99 (199'880°0T) 19’5829/ SaAlosay
psx00qg Xe) pallajag
PEO'CEB’ET - PEOTEB'ET [ended panssy
ALIND3 S.Y3A1OHIYVHS
€E£9'8€£796T 08z’'te8'0T €S5€'£05'S8T S3ILITIAVIT 1V10L
$950d4Nd SYdI 10J 6/2'T€8 0T 6/7'1£8°07 > Apgelt xey paadsgeQ
psx00qg Xe) pallajag
6tL'92Z'98 - 6bL'9zZ'98 SITIITIAVIT WYHIL-DNOT TVLOL
LL976/Y79/ - £L19'6/1'9L 3g9p Wy buon
[AAWA T = TLOLYL'6 Ayljiqe)} ases
193Q WY3L1 DNOT
509082766 ¥09'082°66
uonedyIssedy £FC’E16'9 T ZrT’c16’9 saniqel| 418yi0
$12'€60'T - P12'€60'T SoIjIqeI| Xe) JusLInD
T€1'682'S - 1€1'682'¢ saluedwod dnolb o3 ss|qeAed
182'2/2'11 = 182°¢42'T1 3gep w4e) Buol Jo uoruod Jualind
L21'60%'p - L2160y Ajpige)| eses| yo uoiod Jualin)
000°0zZZ’'ST = 000'02Z'sT WeIPIaAQ
609°€80°/S = 609'€80°/S 3|qeAed sjunodse sped]
SIATLITIEVIT LNIHAND
S ET dyvD [e207]
ST0C ST0Z
SjuUdBWUIOD) ‘1€ 1aquialag SY4I 0] uonIsuel] ‘1€ 1aquRI9Qg
(penunuod) (,,syd1.) spiepuels 6uiioday [epPueUlf [BUOIIRUIBIUT 0} sjuswpusawe judnbasqns
Yim $10Z/Z08T dOW 2yl Jopun pajiodas useq Alsnoinsad se uonjisod [epueuly JO JUSWSEIS JO UOIIEIIDUODIDY 1

(PeNuRUO2) SAYVANVLS DNILYOJIY TVIINVYNIH TYNOILYNYILNI OL NOILISNYYL "8T°t

(poyoads asimiayio ssajun ‘NOY Ul passaldxa a1e sjunowe sy [[e)
9T0Z ‘T€ ¥39dW3D3A A3ANT AVIA FHL MO
SINIWILVLS TVIDONVNIA TVNAIAIANI 3HL Ol S3LON
'V'S 34171 3N



MED LIFE S.A.

NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

3.28 TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

III. Reconciliation of Statement of comprehensive

income as previously

reported under MOF 1802/2014 with subsequent amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")

Year ended Year ended
December 31, Transition to December 31,
Notes 2015 IFRS 2015
Local GAAP IFRS
SALES 291,014,966 = 291,014,966
Other operating revenues 3,491,875 = 3,491,875
OPERATING INCOME 294,506,841 - 294,506,841
OPERATING EXPENSES d), e) (271,206,140) 2,193,209 (269,012,931)
OPERATING PROFIT 23,300,701 2,193,209 25,493,910
Finance cost d) (5,943,466) (1,585,500) (7,528,966)
Other financial expenses (3,729,965) - (3,729,965)
FINANCIAL RESULT (9,673,431) (1,585,500) (11,258,931)
RESULT BEFORE TAXES e) 13,627,270 607,709 14,234,979
Income tax expense (2,559,816) (2,559,816)
NET RESULT 11,067,454 607,709 11,675,163
Other comprehensive income
items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss = - -
Gain / Loss on revaluation of
properties - . _
Deferred tax on other
comprehensive income
components - - =
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME = - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME 11,067,454 - 11,675,163
Notes

d) According to statutory purposes, the bank commissions are considered as operating
expenses. For IFRS purposes, they are considered as part of effective interest for the
loans obtained (impact RON 1,585,500).

e) Depreciation booked for statutory purposes as a correction to retained earnings,
while for IFRS purposes, it was included the related financial year (impact RON

607,709).
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MED LIFE S.A.

NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

3.28. TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

iv. Adjustments for Cash Flow statement (continued)

Cash flow from operating
activities

Profit / Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Interest expense

Interest revenues

Allowance for doubtful debts and
receivables written-off

Financial discounts

Unrealized exchange gain / loss

Other non-monetary gains

Net gain / (loss) on disposal of
property

Operating cash flow before
working capital changes

Increase in accounts receivable

Increase in inventories

Decrease / (Increase) in
prepayments

Increase in accounts payable

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid
Interest paid
Interest received

Net cash flow from operating
activities

Cash flow from investing
activities

Purchase of shares in other
companies

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Loans granted

Net cash used in investing
activities

Year ended
December 31,

Transition to

Year ended
December 31,

Note 2015 IFRS 2015
Local GAAP IFRS

e) 13,627,270 607,709 14,234,979
e) 18,455,545 (607,710) 17,847,835
d) 5,943,466 1,585,500 7,528,966
(342,300) - (342,300)

214,477 - 214,477

f) = 2,804,052 2,804,052
1,186,578 81,635 1,268,213

(2,550,000) = (2,550,000)

(57,292) - (57,292)

36,477,744 4,471,186 40,948,930

g) (4,589,856) (1,403,464) (5,993,320)
(1,760,915) 65,758 (1,695,157)

349,109 - 349,109

7,258,714 150,850 7,409,564

37,734,796 3,284,330 41,019,126
(1,545,685) - (1,545,685)
(5,913,300) (1,585,500) (7,498,800)

342,300 - 342,300

30,618,111 1,698,830 32,316,941
(2,668,680) - (2,668,680)
(1,367,979) 1 (1,367,978)
(16,281,063) (12,837) (16,293,900)

57,292 = 57,292

... (100,117)  _ __ (1,453,510) (1,553,627)
(20,360,547) (1,466,346) (21,826,893)
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MED LIFE S.A.

NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

3.28. TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

Iv. Adjustments for Cash Flow statement (continued)

Cash flow from financing
activities

Increase in bank loans

Payment of bank loans

Payments of financial leasing

Decrease in loans from group
companies

Net cash generated by/
(used in) financing
activity

Net change in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
opening balance

Cash and cash equivalents
closing balance

Notes

Year ended
December 31,

Transition to

Year ended
December 31,

Note 2015 IFRS 2015
Local GAAP IFRS

2,492,571 (553,803) 1,938,768

(10,424,144) 472,169 (9,951,975)

(4,552,773) - (4,552,773)

= (150,431) (150,431)

(12,484,346) (232,065) (12,716,411)
(2,226,782) 419 (2,226,363)

3,564,147 (419) 3,563,728

1,337,365 - 1,337,365

f) Financial discounts were considered non-monetary for statutory purposes.

g) The Company reclassified the loans to group companies from operating to investing

cash flows.
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

4. Financial assets

The Company holds significant investments in other companies.

December 31, December 31, December 31,
Carrying amount 2016 2015 2014
Cost of investments in other companies 85,613,408 48,958,069 46,289,389
Long-term loans granted to group companies 10,878,619 10,839,539 10,811,252
Other financial assets 1,045,529 813,105 735,154
TOTAL 97,537,556 60,610,713 57,841,916

Investments in other companies
Investments in other companies represent 25% of the total assets of the Company.

Movement in cost of investments

December

December 31, 31,

2016 2015

Balance at the beginning of the year 48,958,069 46,289,389
Acquisition of social parts in other companies 36,655,339 2,668,680
Disposal of subsidiaries - -
Balance at year end 85,613,408 48,958,069

Management conducts impairment tests on an annual basis or whenever there is an indication
of impairment to assess the recoverability of the carrying value of investments at standalone
level. This is performed using discounted cash flow models.

There are a number of key sensitive judgements made in determining the inputs into these
models which include:

* Revenue growth
* Operating margins and
* The discount rates applied to the projected future cash flows.

Management have engaged specialists to assist with the determination of the discount rates
for the significant Cash Generating Units to which the cost of investment relates.

Long-term loans granted to other companies

As of December 31, 2016, the Company presents long-term loans granted to Bahtco Invest SA
and Medlife Ocupational SRL of RON 10,878,619 (December 31, 2015: RON 10,839,539;
December 31, 2014: RON 10,811,252).

Other financial assets
Other financial assets represent mainly rent deposits with a maturity longer than one year.
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

5. TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLES FIXED ASSETS (continued)

5.1. Land and buildings carried at fair value

The value of land and buildings related to Med Life, presented in this financial information is based on the
valuation reports which were performed as of December 31, 2016 by an independent valuator certified by

ANEVAR, Mascov Ionescu Eugeniu Gabriel and other independent certified evaluators.

The plots of land subject to the revaluation reports were valued using the market comparison approach
as well as the residual method. The value conclusion was based on the market comparison approach.

The buildings were valued by using both the cost approach and the income approach (capitalization of net
rental income). The final value conclusion is the one derived from the application of the cost approach.

Had the Company’s land and buildings been measured on a historical cost basis, their carrying amount
would have been as presented below:

December 31, December 31, December 31,
Carrying amount without revaluation 2016 2015 2014
Land 1,346,998 1,346,998 1,346,998
Buildings 34,538,000 36,412,582 30,550,078
TOTAL 35,884,998 37,759,580 31,897,076

5.2. Assets pledged as securities

Land and buildings (property on 365, Calea Grivitei} have been pledged to secure borrowings of the
Company (see note 13). The land and buiidings have been pledged as security for bank loans under a
mortgage. The Company is not allowed to pledge these assets as security for other borrowings or to sell
them to another entity.

6. INVENTORIES

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2015 2014 2013

Consumables 6,379,901 5,413,196 3,715,198
Materials in the form of inventory items 18,582 74,536 76,974
Inventory in transit 1,404 1,631 2,034
TOTAL 6,399,887 5,489,363 3,794,206
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2015 2014 2013

Customers 45,065,848 40,686,413 35,981,310
Advances to suppliers 475,697 442,142 1,872,189
Bad debt provisions (16,196,650) (8,330,815) (8,330,815)
TOTAL 29,344,895 32,797,740 29,522,684

Trade receivables as of December 31, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014 include a receivable
of RON 7,365,835 representing amounts to be collected from the National Health House of
Bucharest not yet invoiced. The Company started legal actions against the National Health
House of Bucharest. The management is confident that the receivable may be eventually
recovered, but given the adverse court decisions in similar cases, the Company decided to
record a 100% allowance during 2016.

Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as receivables and are therefore measured at
amortized cost.

The average credit period on collection for services rendered is 90 days. No interest is charged
on trade receivables for the first 90 days from the date of the invoice.

As of December 31, 2016, the Management of the Company performed an assessment
regarding the collectability of receivables- a total allowance of RON 16,196,650 (which includes
the amount of RON 7,365,835 in relation to the National Health House described above)
represents management’s best estimate regarding the receivables which are not to be
collected. The assessment takes into consideration the collection pattern of the receivables
over the last two years. The Company monitors the credit quality of its customers on an
ongoing basis. Credit risk is spread over a large customer base and the Company is not
dependent on the collection of receivables from a limited number of customers.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past
due at the end of the reporting period but against which the Company has not recognized an
allowance for doubtful receivables because there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Company does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a legal right of
offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty.

Ageing of past due but not impaired

December

December 31, 31, December 31,

2016 2015 2014

90 - 180 days 993,164 145,431 1,207,962
180 days - 270 days 803,784 630,195 786,505
270 - 365 days 885,078 678,670 961,370
Over 365 days 2,644,676 1,121,592 2,352,479
TOTAL 5,326,702 2,575,888 5,308,316
Average age {days) 90 90 90

The corporate receivables are spread over a large pool of clients. The main state budget
customers are: The National Health Insurance House (6% of the total receivable balance).
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Movement in the allowance for

doubtful debts

Balance at the beginning of the year

Impairment losses and reversals
recognized on receivables

TOTAL

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015 2014
8,330,815 8,330,815 8,431,062
7,865,835 - (100,247)

16,196,650 8,330,815 8,330,815

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Company considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base
being large and unrelated. The Company is not dependent on the collection of receivables from

a limited number of customers.

Ageing of impaired trade
receivables

270-365 days
Over 365 days

TOTAL GENERAL

Other allowance (described
above)

TOTAL

8. CASH AND BANKS

Cash in bank
Cash in hand
Cash equivalents

TOTAL

December
December 31, 31, December 31,
2016 2015 2014
- = 346,165
8,330,815 8,330,815 7,984,650
8,830,815 8,330,815 8,330,815
7,365,835 - -
16,196,650 8,330,815 8,330,815

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015 2014
12,695,774 1,000,859 3,132,793
779,627 244,234 361,917
483,790 92,272 69,018
13,959,191 1,337,365 3,563,728
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NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MED LIFE S.A.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

9. PREPAYMENTS

As of December 31, 2016 the Company has prepayments in amount of RON 2,724,058 (RON
2,104,708 as of December 31, 2015 and RON 2,453,817 as of December 31, 2014). The
prepayments balance as of December 31, 2016 consists mainly of deferred commissions for
financing related to the Club [oan and the IFC loan obtained in 2016 and amounts related to
rent paid in advance for rented properties and other amounts such as insurance policies for

professionals and tangible assets.

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Suppliers
Fixed assets suppliers
Advances paid by customers

TOTAL

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015 2014
58,212,463 49,190,555 42,726,080
6,640,165 6,846,753 5,970,678
474,993 1,046,301 757,690
65,327,621 57,083,609 49,454,448

The balance of the suppliers account consists of debts for the acquisition of reagents, laboratory
equipment, office equipment, stationery, cleaning products and food.

11. OTHER SHORT TERM LIABILITIES

Salary and related liabilities
Social contributions
Other liabilities

TOTAL

12. LEASING LIABILITIES

Non-current portion - Leasing
Current portion - Leasing

TOTAL

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015 2014
2,895,120 2,275,539 1,807,515
5,966,823 3,701,411 3,994,730
1,888,375 936,293 449,023

10,750,318 6,913,243 6,251,268

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015 2014
5,767,198 9,747,072 1,631,313
4,374,976 4,409,127 837,914

10,142,174 14,156,199 2,469,227
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MED LIFE S.A.

NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

12. LEASING LIABILITIES (continued)

Obligations under finance lease
December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Minimum Lease Payments
Short-term (less than one year) 6,605,477 6,041,276 977,252
Long-term (between 2 and 5 years) 10,660,078 12,941,146 1,768,340
Total 17,265,555 18,982,421 2,745,592
Less: future finance charges (7,123,381) (4,826,222) (276,365)
Present value of lease obligations
Analysed as follows:
Maturing within one year 4,374,976 4,409,127 837,914
Maturing after more than one year but

not later than five year 5,767,198 9,747,072 1,631,313
TOTAL 10,142,174 14,156,199 2,469,227

The fair value of the finance lease liabilities is approximately equal to their carrying amount.

13. FINANCIAL DEBT

Loan agreements
December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Current-portion of long-term loans 11,214,325 11,272,281 10,123,354
Non-current portion of long-term

loans 142,653,683 76,479,677 83,981,224

Overdraft - 15,220,000 15,220,000

TOTAL 153,868,008 102,971,958 109,686,787

(a) As of December 31, 2015, the Company had two loans outstanding from International
Finance Corporation ("IFC”), member of World Bank Group. The first agreement was
signed in 2006 for a total amount of EUR 5,000,000, The interest rate was sum of the

relevant spread and six-month EURIBOR.

In May 2016, the last installment was paid and the outstanding amount as of December 31,

2016 regarding this specific loan is nil.

The outstanding balance of the loan received from IFC as at December 31, 2015 is in amount
of RON 1,640,753, the equivalent of EUR 362,638 (December 31, 2014: RON 4,876,131, the

equivalent of EUR 1,087,912).
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

13. FINANCIAL DEBT (continued)

(b) In 2010, the Med Life SA concluded a second loan agreement with IFC with a total value
of EUR 10,000,000 (Loan A) and then, in 2011 Med Life and co-borrowers {(Accipiens SA,
Bahtco Invest SA and Policlinica de Diagnostic Rapid SA) signed an Amended and
Restated Loan Agreement with IFC and Erste and additional funding of EUR 40,000,000
(Loan B) was obtained.

In August 2014, the Group signed a refinancing agreement with BCR for the total amount of
EUR 30,398,901 representing EUR 28,298,901 of the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement
with IFC and an additional EUR 2,100,000 representing the amount of the initial B loan
available as of the dated of this agreement.

As of December 31, 2015, the outstanding balance related to this loan is RON 14,543,034,
equivalent of EUR 3,214,285 (December 31, 2014: RON 17,608,249, the equivalent of EUR
3,928,572). As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance is RON 12,974,571, the
equivalent of EUR 2,857,143.

On September 30, 2016, Med Life (together with the co-borrowers- Policlinica de Diagnostic
Rapid SA, Bahtco Invest SA and Accipiens SA) signed a new loan agreement with IFC in
amount of EUR 10,000,000. The purpose of the facility is to refinance part of the club loan
agreement mentioned above related to the financing of acquisitions of shares in new
companies. As well, through signing this new agreement with IFC, the Group refinanced the
existing contract with IFC described above in (b).

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance related to the new facility obtained from
IFC is RON 18,164,400, the equivalent of EUR 4,000,000.

According to the new loan agreement, the outstanding balance as of December 31, 2016 will
be repaid through 12 consecutive installments of EUR 238,095 starting November 15, 2017,

According to the new loan agreement, the repayment of EUR 10,000,000 will be performed
through 12 consecutive installments of EUR 833,333 starting November 15, 2017.

The set of indicators that have to be maintained by the Group were modified and will be
calculated semi-annually on basis of Adjusted Equity, Adjusted Prospective Debt Service
Coverage Ratio and adjusted EBITDA.

The interest to be charged will be charged based on EURIBOR plus relevant spread.
The IFC loan is secured through the following guarantees:

« immovable mortgage on land and buildings situated on 365 Calea Grivitei

s immovable mortgage on land and buildings owned by Bahtco Invest SA (Pediatrics
Hospital)

« immovable mortgage on land and buildings owned by Policlinica de Diagnostic Rapid SA
(PDR Clinic and Hospital)
immovable mortgage on land and buildings owned by RUR Medical SA

» a first ranking mortgage on Med Life’s shares held by the Sponsors (Mr. Mihail Marcu,
Ms. Mihaela Gabriela Cristescu and Mr. Nicolae Marcu) from time to time in favour of
IFC securing IFC Equity, as amended from time to time

« asecond ranking on all the Borrower’s shares held by the Sponsors from time to time in
favour of IFC securing the obligations of the Borrower under the agreement
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MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

13. FINANCIAL DEBT (continued)

* amortgage on Med Life’s cash accounts opened with BCR, as amended from time to
time

* amortgage on each of the Co-Borrower’s cash accounts opened with BCR

* mortgage on shares owned by the Borrower in the share capital of each the Co-
Borrowers, Centrul Medical Sama SA, RUR Medical SA, Ultratest SA, Prima Medical SRL,
Diamed Center SRL, Stem Cells Bank SA, Centrul Medical Panduri SA, Dent Estet Clinic
SA and any other material company or accession borrower

* movable mortgage agreement: certain movable assets: medical equipment (including
future medical equipment), insurances related to tangible assets mortgaged in relation
to the transaction documents, bank and treasury accounts, commercial receivables of
Borrower

* movable mortgage agreement: certain movable assets: medical equipment (including
future medical), insurances related to tangible assets mortgaged in relation to the
transaction documents, bank and treasury accounts of Bahtco Invest SA, Policlinica de
Diagnostic Rapid SA, Accipiens SA

» movable mortgage of Target Shares owned by the Borrower in favor of IFC.

* movable mortgage agreement over certain commercial receivables of Med Life
(including receivables against the National Health House of Romania, the Health
Insurance House of the Defense, Public Order, National Safety and Judicial Authority in
Romania or any similar entity and receivables arising under large commercial
contracts).

¢) Med Life SA concluded in 2011 another contract for a multi-product facility with BCR
with as maximum amount of EUR 5,000,000. At the date of the financial
statements, the Shareholders have approved only the maximum amount of EUR
4,000,000. The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2014 is EUR 3,476,542
(RON 15,582,209).The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2015 is EUR
3,363,908 (RON 15,220,000). In 2016, as part of the Club Loan Agreement, Med
Life refinanced this facility with facility B of the Club Loan agreement.

d) On August 28, 2014, the Med Life signed a refinancing agreement with BCR related
to the A and B loan obtained from IFC and Erste Bank (parties to a participation
agreement dated 11 August 2011 according to which Erste Group Bank AG has
purchased all the participations in the initial loan B).

The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2015 is EUR 28,936,099, equivalent of RON
130,921,380 (December 31, 2014: EUR 29,730,899, equivalent of RON 133,256,863).

According to the agreement with IFC, the Group shall maintain a set of financial indicators. The
indicators are to be computed based on the IFRS consolidated financial statements. As of
December 31, 2015, the management of the Group computed these indicators according to the
loan agreement. The creditor waived the right to recall the loan as a result of the breach of
certain covenants.

In 2016, the Med Life SA signed a club loan agreement with four banks (the Finance Parties-
Banca Comerciala Romana SA, BRD- Groupe Societe Generale SA, ING Bank N.V. Amsterdam-
Bucharest Branch and Raiffeisen Bank SA) for the total amount of EUR 48,764,590 and RON
27,000,000, through which the Group refinanced the entire long-term loan from BCR
(described above) and the short-term credit facility from BCR, in order to continue the
investing activities.

48



MED LIFE S.A.
NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(all the amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified)

13. FINANCIAL DEBT (continued)

The Club loan granted to the Group three facilities. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding
amounts for each facility are presented below:

Facility Amount in EUR Amount in RON

Facility A 26,386,295 119,822,804
Facility B - 27,000,000
Facility C 6,517,723 29,597,633
Total 32,904,018 176,420,437

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding amounts for each facility related to Med Life SA are
presented below:

Facility Amount in EUR Amount in RON

Facility A 14,412,001 65,446,338
Facility B - 27,000,000
Facility C 6,517,723 29,597,633
Total 19,182,495 122,043,971

The Group shall repay Facility A and Facility C pro rata with the amount made available in
semi-annual installments according to the agreed schedule,

The Group shall repay each Facility B loan drawn on the last day of its Interest Period. Without
prejudice on the Group'’s obligation, one or more Facility B loans are to be made available to
the Group on the same day that a maturing Facility B loan is due to be repaid by the Group, in
whole or in part for the purpose of refinancing the maturing Facility B loan.

The rate of interest on each loan for each interest period is the percentage rate per annum
which is the aggregate of the applicable margin and in relation to any loan in EUR, EURIBOR
or, in relation to any loan in RON, ROBOR.

The following security was requested:

o immovable mortgage over (i) a plot of land located at 365 Calea Grivitei sector 1,
Bucharest Romania (cadastral number 13183/1) and the buildings related

o immovable mortgage over a plot of land and the buildings thereon comprising Pediatrics
Hospital located in Bucharest, 7 Zagazului street - land book 218010

. immoveable mortgage over a plot of land and the buildings thereon comprising PDR
Clinic and Hospital located in Brasov 5, Turnului Street - land book no 127854

. moveable mortgage over certain moveable assets (large medical equipment) owned by
each of Med Life, Bahtco Invest SA and Policlinica de Diagnostic Rapid SA

. moveable mortgage over future medical equipment to be acquired by each original
borrower created in favor of Finance Parties and securing as regards Med Life and Bahtco
Invest SA, the obligations of Med Life and Bahtco Invest SA under the Finance documents
and as regards other original borrower, its obligations under Finance Documents.

° moveable mortgage over the insurances of each borrower related to tangible assets
mortgaged in favor of the Finance Parties
o movable mortgage over the shares owned by the Company in the share capital of the

other original borrowers and Centrul Medical Sama SA, Ultratest SA, Rur Medical SA and
any other material company or accession borrower if case, respectively created by the
Company in favor of the Finance Parties and securing the obligations of the Company and
Bahtco under finance agreements.
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13. FINANCIAL DEBT (continued)

o moveable mortgage over the bank and treasury accounts of each original borrowers

. moveable mortgage over certain commercial receivables of the Company (including
receivables against the National Health House of Romania, the Health Insurance House of
the Defense, Public Order, National Safety and Judicial Authority in Romanian or any
similar entity and receivables arising under commercial contracts created in the favor of
the Finance Parties)

o moveable mortgage over the shares of the sponsors in the borrower to be created under
ta moveable mortgage agreement over shares to be entered into between the sponsors,
the lender and IFC

14. ISSUED CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the total issued
capital of Med Life was RON 13,932,034 divided in share capital of RON 5,023,000 and share
premium of RON 8,909,034.

As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the shareholders’ structure is as presented
below:

No. of shares % Value
Marcu Mihail 105,483 21.00% 1,054,830
Marcu Nicolae 75,345 15.00% 753,450
Cristescu Mihaela Gabriela 75,345 15.00% 753,450
IFC 64,043 12.75% 640,433
SGAM Eastern Europe Holding V. Limited/
Value 4 Capital 182,084 36.25% 1,820,838
TOTAL 502,300 100% 5,023,000

In December 2016, Med Life SA, the parent company of Med Life Group was listed on the
Bucharest Stock Exchange. The shareholders’ structure as of December 31, 2016 is presented
below:

No. of shares % Value
Marcu Mihail 4,219,320 21.00% 1,054,830
Marcu Nicolae 3,013,800 15.00% 753,450
Cristescu Mihaela Gabriela 3,013,800 15.00% 753,450
Other shareholders 9,845,080 49.00% 2,461,270
TOTAL 20,092,000 100% 5,023,000

15. RESERVES

The structure of the Company’s reserves is presented below:

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2016 2015 2014

General reserves 1,004,600 1,004,600 1,004,600
Other reserves 8,679,871 8,679,871 4,966,283
Revaluation reserves 63,024,298 57,012,512 57,012,512
TOTAL 72,708,768 66,696,982 62,983,395
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15. RESERVES (continued)

As of December 31, 2014, Med Life SA used a fiscal facility available starting 2014 for re-
invested profit and increased its reserves according to the fiscal rufes by RON 4,933,776 based
on the profit obtained in 2014. As of December 31, 2015, Med Life SA used the fiscal facility of
re-invested profit and increased its reserves by RON 3,705,398. This reserve will be taxed

when it will be used under any form.

General reserves and other reserves

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

Balance at beginning of the year

Movements

Balance at the end of the year

2016 2015 2014
9,684,470 5,970,883 1,004,599
- 3,713,587 4,966,284
9,684,470 9,684,470 5,970,883

Revaluation reserves

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

Balance at beginning of the year

Decrease arising revaluation correction
Increase due to revaluation
Deferred tax related to revaluation

Balance at the end of the year

2016 2015 2014
57,012,512 57,012,512 57,219,512
= S (207,000)

7,156,888 = =
(1,145,102) = =
63,024,298 57,012,512 57,012,512

The properties revaluation reserve arises on the revaluation of land and buildings. When
revalued land or buildings are sold, the portion of the properties revaluation reserve that
relates to that asset, and that is effectively realized, is transferred directly to general reserves.

The effects of taxes on income, if any, resulting from the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment are recognized and disclosed in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes (please see

note 22).

16. SALES

Turnover for the year ended December 31, 2016 is of RON 341,731,549 (for the year ended December
31, 2015 - RON 291,014,966and for the year ended December 31, 2014- RON 251,092,044 ) consisting
of medical services, net of VAT, including revenues from health packages of corporate customers and

fees for services rendered within Med Life’s clinics and various hospitals within Romania.

17. OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

Other operating revenues caption comprises:

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015
Other operating income 1,924,743 941,875
Capitalized costs of intangible assets 2,000,000 2,550,000
TOTAL 3,924,743 3,491,875
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18. OPERATING EXPENSES

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015
Consumable materials & repair materials 53,655,550 48,892,065
Commodities expenses = =
Utilities 3,198,546 2,956,357
Repairs maintenance 3,129,423 2,522,514
Rent 25,293,007 18,060,439
Insurance premiums 1,525,181 1,342,243
Promotion expense 8,267,548 6,210,721
Communications 2,527,362 2,781,510
Third party expenses (including doctor’s agreements) 97,392,878 82,756,467
Salary and related expenses 80,966,844 62,831,839
Social contributions 18,347,671 14,126,665
Depreciation 25,052,345 17,847,835
Impairment losses recognized in profit and loss = =
Other administration & operating exp. 19,336,652 8,684,276
TOTAL 338,693,007 269,012,931

19. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL EXPENSES

The structure of Med Life personnel is described below:

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015
Management 30 29
Staff 2,154 1,860
Total 2,184 1,889

The short-term benefits (salary expenses) paid by the Company, by type of personnel are described

below:
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Management 10,609,628 6,219,517
Staff 70,357,216 56,612,322
Total 80,966,844 62,831,839

As of December 31, 2016, the Company performed the analysis of management salaries and
determined a new method of defining key personnel, which is more relevant from Company
perspective. As a result, the Company restated the disclosure for the year ended December
31, 2015 for salaries expenses for key management to present comparative figures.

20. FINANCIAL NET RESULT

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015
Other financial expenses (3,052,445) (2,804,052)
Net foreign exchange rate impact (1,843,030) (1,268,213)
Net finance cost — interest expense (9,403,108) (7,528,966)
Other income = =
Interest income 390,842 342,300
FINANCIAL NET RESULT-LOSS (13,907,741) (11,258,931)
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21, RELATED PARTIES

The related parties identified are all the companies in Med Life Group, Nautic Life SRL and Marcu Nicolae

(shareholder).

Closing balances

Payables

MARCU NICOLAE

NAUTIC LIFE

Pharmalife Med SRL

PDR SA

PDR Medis SRL

BAHTCO INVEST SA
Medapt SRL

RUR Medica SAl

Genesys Medical Clinic SRL
Histo SRL

Biofarm Farmec SRL
BIOTEST MED SRL

VITAL TEST S,R,L,

Centrul Medical Sama
Ultratest

Prima Medical SRL

Diamed Center SRL

Aspen Laborator Dentar SRL

TOTAL

Receivables
NAUTIC LIFE

MARCU NICOLAE
Pharmalife Med SRL
PDR SA

Histo SRL

Genesys Medical SRL
PDR Medis SRL
Accipiens SA
BIOTEST MED SRL
VITAL TEST SRL,
Centrul Medical Sama SA
Ultratest Craiova SA
RUR Medical SA
Diamed Center SRL
Stem Cells Bank SA
TOTAL
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December
December 31, December 31, 31,
2016 2015 2014
5,084 5,084
140,440 - 55,030
708,420 757,504 551,663
730,756 4,547,304 3,163,848
638,067 549,574 455,984
803,275 549 2,224,323
832,033 899,369 899,369
1,956,053 2,920,133 2,616,106
3,255,207 2,661,400 1,734,704
59,328 36,595 16,124
8,848
549,834 280,291 25,034
252,112 177,224 64,123
575,059 129,449 =
2,359 = =
17,045 - -
133 = =
31,281 = =
10,560,250 12,964,476 11,811,392
55,282 67,400 335,247
174,866 380,256 154,591
70 70 70
849,337 895,256 395,108
21,019 291,299 216,221
6,692 6,692 6,692
356,921 136,977 22,862
298,273 165,363 10,888
238,657 100,875 =
10,951 4,640 -
130,889 130,889 126,774
92,153
16,317
2,251,427 2,179,717 1,268,454
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21. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

December 31, December 31, December 31,

Transactions during the year 2016 2015 2014
Expenses

NAUTIC LIFE - - -
MARCU NICOLAE - - -
PDR SA 1,876,470 1,783,432 1,701,374
PDR Medis SRL 88,493 93,590 162,933
BAHTCO INVEST SA 2,156,792 2,643,221 2,639,305
Histo SRL 22,733 20,471 16,124
Medapt SRL = =
RUR Medical SA 238,407 304,027 280,000
Genesys Medical Clinic SRL 1,544,146 1,340,696 1,062,140
BIOTEST MED SRL 1,558,438 933,610 215,859
VITAL TEST SRL 1,074,438 616,489 96,730
Centrul Medical Sama 1,405,610 627,127 -
Ultratest Craiova SA 2,359 - -
Prima Medical SRL 17,045 - -
Diamed Center SRL 44,246 - -
Total 10,029,177 8,362,663 6,174,465
Acquisition of fixed assets

NAUTIC LIFE 1,201,835 3,511,265 4,403,469
Acquisition of inventories

Pharmalife Med SRL 95,063 122,153 289,963
BAHTCO INVEST SA 7,036,306 9,115,205 10,348,282
Biofarm Farmec SRL 7,854 - -
Total 7,139,223 9,237,358 10,638,245
Sales

Pharmalife Med SRL - 122,153 202,149
PDR SA 995,608 802,641 678,319
Histo SRL = = 70
PDR Medis SRL 92,546 78,568 90,237
Rur Medical SA = 4,114 5,342
Genesys Medical Clinic SRL 847,712 660,148 354,370
Accipiens SA = =

BIOTEST MED SRL 38,104 225,893 34,531
VITAL TEST SRL 11,049 157,193 10,888
Centrul Medical Sama SA 160,130 108,012 -
Ultratest Craiova SA 7,098 5,494 =
Biofarm Farmec SRL o = =
Bahtco Invest SA = = -
Diamed Center SRL 92,153 = -
Stem Cells Bank SA 65,608 - =
Total 2,310,009 2,164,216 1,375,906
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21. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Loans granted

VITAL TEST SRL
PDR SA
BAHTCO INVEST SA

MedLife Ocupational SRL

Accipiens SA

Genesys Medical Clinic SRL

Rur Medical SRL
Stem Cells Bank SA
Diamed Center SRL

December 31, December 31,

December 31,

Total

2016 2015 2014
17,098 : 13,319
904,509 2,059,234 2,552,617
17,566,953 12,094,879 11,986,600
2,041,892 1,446,383 1,094,987
1,921,773 117,294 117,294
274,588 435,774 514,039
1,285,260 2,165,402 2,399,035
532,355
998,422 -
25,542,850 20,118,082 18,664,572

As of December 31, 2016, Med Life SA records long term loans to be collected from Bahtco

Invest SA (RON 10,690,576) and Med Life Ocupational SRL (RON 188,043).

Loans obtained

Genesys Medical Clinic SRL

Pharmalife Med SRL
PDR SA

Accipiens SA

Asilife SA

Prima Medical SRL

22. TAXATION

Current income tax expense
Deferred tax expense

Total tax income

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015 2014
270,678 5 -
159,379 1,601,959 1,524,147
47,645 - -

1,660,659 1,387,172 1,603,108
177,854 300,000 312,307
433,524

2,749,739 3,289,131 3,439,562

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(1,999,255) (2,559,816) (1,784,665)
1,190,858 - 106,571
(808,397) (2,559,816) (1,678,094)
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22, TAXATION (continued)

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Profit / (loss) before tax (6,944,456) 14,234,979 10,386,247
Income tax expense calculated at 16% = 2,277,597 1,661,800
Effect of expenses that are not
deductible in determining
taxable profit 1,999,255 282,219 16,294

Effect of temporary differences (1,190,858) - -

Income tax expense recognized in

profit or loss (808,397) (2,559,816) (1,678,094)

Med Life accrues income taxes at the rate of 16% on profits computed in accordance with the
Romanian tax legislation.

The components of deferred tax as of December 31, 2016 are presented below:

December 31, Change in December 31,
Components of deferred tax 2016 deferred tax 2015
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets = (67,676) 67,676
Trade receivables 1,258,534 1,258,534 -
Total deferred tax asset 1,258,534 1,190,858 67,676
December 31, Change in December 31,
Deferred tax liability 2016 deferred tax 2015
Receivables -
Non-current assets =
Revaluation reserve 12,044,056 1,145,102 10,898,954
Total deferred tax liability 12,044,056 1,145,102 10,898,954
Net deferred income tax
liability / (assets) 10,785,523 10,831,279

The net effect of the change on deferred tax balances recognized as at December 31, 2016,
except for the deferred tax related to the revaluation reserve which is recognized in equity, is

reflected in the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended.
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22, TAXATION (continued)

The components of deferred tax as of December 31, 2015 are presented below:

December 31, Change in December 31,
Components of deferred tax 2015 deferred tax 2014
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets 67,676 = 67,676
Trade receivables = = -
Total deferred tax asset 67,676 - 67,676
December 31, Change in December 31,
Deferred tax liability 2015 deferred tax 2014
Receivables - o -
Non-current assets = = =
Revaluation reserve 10,898,954 = 10,898,954
Total deferred tax liability 10,898,954 - 10,898,954
Net deferred income tax
liability / (assets) 10,831,279 10,831,279

The net effect of the change on deferred tax balances recognized as at December 31, 2015,
except for the deferred tax related to the revaluation reserve which is recognized in equity, is
reflected in the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended.

The components of deferred tax as of December 31, 2014 are presented below:
December 31,

Change in deferred December 31,

Components of deferred tax 2014 tax 2013
Deferred tax assets

Non-current assets 67,676 67,676 -
Trade receivables - (23,777) 23,777
Total deferred tax asset 67,676 23,777

December 31, Change in deferred December 31,

Deferred tax liability 2014 tax 2013
Receivables - = -
Non-current assets - (62,672) 62,672
Revaluation reserve 10,898,954 = 10,898,954
Total deferred tax liability 10,898,954 (62,672) 10,961,627
Net deferred income tax

liability / (assets) 10,831,279 10,937,850

The net effect of the change on deferred tax balances recognized as at December 31, 2014,
except for the deferred tax related to the revaluation reserve which is recognized in equity, is
reflected in the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended.
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (IFRS 7)
(a) Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed
in note 13, cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 8 and equity, comprising issued capital,
reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in notes 14 and 15.

The Company’s risk management reviews the capital structure regularly. As a part of this
review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital, Based on recommendations of the management, the Company will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

(b) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recoghized, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument
are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

(c) Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to
domestic and international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating
to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyses exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

(d) Market risk

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates (see (g) below).

There has been no change to the Company’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which
it manages and measures the risk.

(e) Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates.

(f) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (IFRS 7) (continued)

(g) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments in the balance sheet include trade receivables and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, short-term and long-term loans and trade and other payables. The
estimated fair values of these instruments approximate their carrying amounts. The carrying
amounts represent the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for existing receivables.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

2016

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables

Receivables from group companies
Long-term loans to group companies

LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Short-Term and Long-Term portions of
loans

Short-Term and Long-Term portions of
financial leasing

Payables to group companies

2015

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables

Receivables from group companies
Long-term loans to group companies

LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Overdraft

Short-Term and Long-Term portions of
loans

Short-Term and Long-Term portions of
financial leasing

Payables to group companies
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1 EUR =
RON 4.5411
RON EUR Total
6,369,984 7,589,207 13,959,191
29,344,895 - 29,344,895
25,542,850 - 25,542,850
- 10,878,619 10,878,619
65,327,621 - 65,327,621
27,000,000 126,868,008 153,868,008
- 10,142,174 10,142,174
2,749,739 - 2,749,739
1 EUR =
RON 4.5245
RON EUR Total
5,707,887 173,609 1,337,365
32,797,740 - 32,797,740
20,118,082 - 20,118,082
- 10,839,539 10,839,539
57,083,609 = 57,083,609
15,220,000 - 15,220,000
- 87,151,958 87,151,958
- 14,156,199 14,156,199
- 3,289,131 3,289,131
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (IFRS 7) (continued)

(g) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

2014 1 EUR =

RON 4.4821

RON EUR Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7,234,934 348,424 3,563,728
Trade receivables 29,522,684 - 29,522,684
Receivables from group companies 18,664,572 - 18,664,572
Long term loans to group companies = 10,811,252 10,811,252
LIABILITIES
Trade payables 49,454,449 - 49,454,449
Overdraft 15,582,209 - 15,582,209
Short-Term and Long-Term portions of
loans = 94,104,578 94,104,578
Short-Term and Long-Term portions
financial leasing = 2,469,227 2,469,227
Payables from group companies 3,439,562 3,439,562

The Company is mainly exposed in respect of the exchange rate of the RON versus EUR. The
above table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in RON against
EUR. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a

10% change in foreign currency rates.

A negative number below indicates a decrease in profit where EUR is weakening 10% against
RON. For a 10% strengthening of EUR against the RON there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and other equity, and the balances below would be positive. Change is
mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on RON cash and cash equivalents at year end

in the Company.

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Profit or loss 11,854,236 9,358,414 8,541,413
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (IFRS 7) (continued)

(g) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The following table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for financial liabilities
as of December 31, 2016. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay,
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Non-interest
bearing
instruments

Trade payables

Interest bearing
instruments

IFC loans

Club Loan
Lease contracts

Total

Weighted
average
effective Carrying Less than 1to5 More than
interest rate amount 1 year years 5 years
65,327,621 65,327,621 - -
EURIBOR 6M +
relevant spread
% 31,138,971 2,594,913 20,759,305 7,784,753
EURIBOR 6M +
relevant spread
% 122,729,039 8,619,412 86,550,218 27,559,409
10,142,174 4,374,976 5,767,198 =
229,337,805 80,916,922 113,076,721 35,344,162

The following table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for financial liabilities
as of December 31, 2015. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Non-interest
bearing
instruments

Trade payables

Interest bearing
instruments

IFC loans

BCR Loan
BCR Overdraft
Lease contracts

Total

Weighted
average
effective Carrying Less than 1to5s More than
interest rate amount 1 year years 5 years
57,083,609 57,083,609 = =
EURIBOR 6M +
relevant spread
% 16,183,788 4,911,209 11,272,579 -
EURIBOR 6M +
relevant spread
% 71,568,170 6,361,072 42,580,572 22,626,526
Relevant spread 15,220,000 15,220,000 - -
14,156,199 4,409,127 9,747,072 -
174,211,766 87,985,017 63,600,223 22,626,526
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23. Fair value of financial instruments
(g) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The following table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for financial liabilities
as of December 31, 2014. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted
average effective Carrying Less than 1 More than
interest rate amount year 1 to 5 years 5 years
Non-interest
bearing
instruments
Trade payables - 49,454,448 49,454,448 = -
Interest bearing
instruments
EURIBOR
(6 month)
+ relevant spread
IFC loan % p,a, 22,484,383 6,452,256 16,032,127 =
EURIBOR
6 month
+ relevant spread
BCR Loans p.a, 71,620,195 3,671,098 35,038,940 32,910,157
EURIBOR
1 month
BCR Overdraft + relevant spread 15,582,209 15,582,209 - -
Lease contracts 2,469,227 837,914 1,631,313 =
Total 161,610,462 75,997,925 52,702,380 32,910,157

24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable. A
contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

IFC related commitments

In accordance with Share retention agreement concluded with IFC - the Shareholders should
not sell or in any manner dispose of, pledge or encumber, or permit any encumbrance to exist
over, all or any portion of the shares in the capital of the Company which they own at the
moment of the agreement as long as any part of the principal of or interest or any other
amounts owned by Med Life to IFC under the Loan Agreement remain outstanding and unpaid.

The shareholders of the Company agreed to pledge to IFC as security all shares, security,
rights, money or property either accruing or acquired including any proceeds from disposal of
shares until all obligations are paid or discharged. Med Life may be obliged to buy back all or
part of these shares hold by IFC as it may deem and in a commercially reasonable manner, if
either the company or the other shareholder fails to meet certain covenants specified in the
agreement or the provisions of the Share Retention agreement.
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Club loan related commitments

In accordance with the Club loan facilities agreement, the Med Life SA shall ensure that it shall
not incur any additional Capital Expenditure except for any acquisition financed from Facility C
and capital expenditures up to the aggregate amounts agreed in the contract for the years
2016-2023.

Med Life SA shall not enter into any agreement which will amend, novate, modify or vary the
provisions of Med Life's Shareholders” Agreement without the prior written consent of the
lenders.

Other commitments

As at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Med Life SA holds insurance policies to
cover possible liabilities towards doctors for malpractice as well as insurance contracts related
to buildings and medical equipment.

In conformity with the concluded agreement with the National House of Health Insurance, the
Med Life has to provide primary medical services to National House's insured citizens.

BCR issued letters of warranties in the favor of Med Life S,A, in amount of RON 2,972,900 ,
equivalent of EUR 654,665 as of December 31, 2016 (December 31, 2015:RON
2,468,400,equivalent of EUR 545,463; December 31, 2014: RON 2,023,834, equivalent of EUR
451,537).

Fiscal environment

The taxation system in Romania is still developing and is subject to various interpretations and
constant changes, which may sometimes be retroactive. Although the actual tax due for a
transaction may be minimum, delay interests may be significant, as they can be calculated at
the value of the transaction and at a rate of 0,03% per day (interest) and 0,02% (penalties)
per day in 2015, Starting with January 2016, the level of interest charged was reduced to
0,02% per day and the level of penalties charged was reduced 0,01% per day.

In Romania the statute of limitation for tax controls (audits) is of 5 years, Management
believes that the tax obligations included in these financial statements are adequate.

Transfer pricing

The fiscal legislation from Romania includes the “"market value” principle, according to which
the transactions between related parties have to be performed at the market value. The local
tax payers, who carry transactions with related parties, have to prepare and make available to
the tax authorities from Romania, at their written request, the transfer pricing documentation
file. If the companies do not prepare the documentation or they present an incomplete transfer
pricing file may attract penalties for non-conformity, and additionally to the information
presented in the transfer pricing file, the fiscal authorities may have a different interpretation
of the transactions and the circumstances compared to the management’s assessment and, as
a result, they may impose additional fiscal obligations as a result of adjusting transfer prices.
The management of the Company is confident that, if required, they will submit the necessary
information in due time to the fiscal authorities. The transactions with related parties and
group companies are performed based on the market value principle.
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24, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Litigation

The Company is involved in various litigations as part of normal course of business,
Management has assessed the legal status together with the Company’s legal advisors and all
necessary adjustments have been recorded in the financial statements.

25. AUDITORS ‘FEES

The auditor of the Group is Deloitte Audit SRL.

The fee for the audit of the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2016 of the
Group prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by EU and the standalone financial
statements as of December 31, 2016 of the Group prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by EU of Med Life SA was EUR 78,100, excluding VAT and out of pocket expenses.

The fee for the review of the consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2016 of
the Group prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by EU was EUR 25,000 excluding VAT

and out of pocket expenses.

The fee for the IPO related assurance services has been according to the engagement letter
agreed between the parties.

The total fees for fiscal consulting services was :

Supplier Description Amount in RON
TXHOUSE Fiscal consulting services 82,777
PWC ADVISORS Fiscal opinion 240,745
DELOITTE TAX SRL Fiscal consulting services 351,795

26 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Med Life SA purchased a building located in Banu Manta Street from Telekom and performed a
sale and leaseback through financial leasing.

Med Life SA signed the Sales Purchase Agreement for the acquisition of shares/social parts of
the share capital of the following companies:

. 80% of share capital of Almina Trading SRL
. 100% of share capital in Anima Speciality Medical Services SRL,

Neither transaction has been closed by the approval of the financial statements.

There were no other significant subsequent events after December 31, 2016.

Ap roved by the Board of Directors on the date of March 24, 2017 and signed on behalf of by:

(& c

Mihail Marcu, Vera Firu,
Administrator Director Economic
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1. Presentation of the Company

Med Life S.A. ("MedLife” or the “Company”) is a joint-stock company incorporated in 1996, in
accordance with the laws and regulations of Romania. The Company’s activity resides in the
performance of healthcare services activities through medical centres located in Bucharest,
Cluj, Timisoara, Iasi, Galati and Constanta.

Med Life Group is offering a large range of medical service having opened 17 Hyperclinics in
Bucharest, Timisoara, Brasov, Arad, lasi, Galati, Craiova, Cluj and Constanta; 8 hospitals —
located in Bucharest, Arad and Brasov, 19 Medical Centers and 24 Laboratories for analysis, as
well as 3 maternity hospitals. The Group has also more than 140 private Clinic partners around
Romania.

MedLife is one of the leading health care services providers in Romania, having a significant
market share at a national level.

The registered office of MedLife is located in Bucharest, Calea Grivitei, no. 365.

Details of the Med Lifes subsidiaries at December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and

December 31, 2014 are as follows:
Proportion of ownership interest
and voting power held

December December December
Principal Place of 31, 31, 31,
Name of subsidiary  Activity operation 2016 2015 2014
Policlinica de ) ) Brasov, o o o
1 Diagnostic Rapid SA Medical Services Romania 80.01% 80.01% 80.01%
" . Brasov, @ & R ®
2 Medapt SRL Medical Services FERERE 80.01% 80.01% 80.01%
] " n Brasov, 5
3 Histo SRL Medical Services Romania 48.01% 48.01% 48.01%
Policlinica de Sfantu
4 Diagnostic Rapid Medical Services Gheorge, 64.01% 64.01% 64.01%
Medis SRL Romania
Development of Bucharest, o 3 o
5 Bahtco Invest S.A. building projects " 100% 100% 100%
Medsanrom SRL (Mec 7 ] Bucharest, o o
6 Life Ocupational SRL) bgelieel) Siess Romania 100% hGe BT
Distribution of
) Pharmaceutical Bucharest, o
7 Pharmalife Med SRL Products in specialised Romania 100% 100% 100%
stores
Asilife Insurance Bucharest, o & o
8 Broker SRL Insurance broker Romania 95% 95% 95%
. R, Bucharest, q A
9 Accipiens Rental activities Romania 55% 55% 55%
. : Bucharest,
10 Genesys SRL Medical services Romania 559, 55% 55%
Distribution of
. Pharmaceutical Bucharest, 3 o o
11 Biofarm Farmec SRL Products in specialised Romania 55% 55% 55%
stores
. . . . Bucharest,
12 RUR Medical Services  Medical services Romania 100% 100% 100%
13 Biotest Med Medical Services Bucharest 100% 100% 100%
14 Vital Test Medical Services Bucharest 100% 100% 100%



During the year 2015, the Med Life SA also acquired control of the following companies:

Proportion of ownership interest
and voting power held

Name of Principal Place of December 31, December 31, December 31,
subsidiary Activity operation 2016 2015 2014
Agis 2000 SRL Other healthcare Arad,

15 2 - . - 55% -
(indirectly) services Romania

16 Baqro SRL Othgr healthcare Deva, ' 550, 550, B
(indirectly) services Romania
Centrul Craiova

17 Medical Sama Medical Services ! 55% 55% =
S.A. Romania

Other healthcare  Craiova, o o R
18 Ultratest S.A. services o m————- 55% 55%

Agis 2000 SRL was disposed of in 2016.

During the year 2016, Med Life SA also acquired control of the following companies:

Proportion of ownership interest and
voting power held

Principal Place of December 31, December 31,
Name of subsidiary Activity operation 2016 2015
. . ) Bucharest,
1 Diamed Center SRL Medical Services o m— 100% _
. i . . Craiova,
2 Prima Medical SRL Medical Services REEEE 100% B
. . Timisoara,
3  Stem Cells Bank SA Medical Services R 60% _
- Dental healthcare Bucharest,
S REEEREmS S activities Romania 60% .
) . . : Bucharest,
5 Centrul Medical Panduri Medical Services R —— 90%
One of the companies acquired in 2016, Dent Estet Clinic SA also owns the following
companies as described below:
Proportion of ownership interest and
voting power held by Dent Estet Ciinic
SA
Principal Place of December 31,
Name of subsidiary Activity operation 2016
- Dental healthcare Bucharest, 51%
Green Dental Clinic SRL activities [ ——
R : Dental healthcare Bucharest,
ISR & (e SRl activities Romania 52%
Dental healthcare Bucharest,
Dent A Porter SRL activities Romania 51.61%
. Dental healthcare Bucharest,
emEsze (e activities Romania 52.94%
Dental healthcare Bucharest,
e (LEeaEer BeEr activities Romania 75 %

MedLife’s business model focuses on servicing corporations and private clients. The Company
seeks to capture the private healthcare spending of these clients throughout all stages of a
medical condition: prevention, diagnosis and treatment, by offering a wide range of medical
services delivered in modern, high quality facilities by professional teams of doctors, nurses
and support personnel. The Company puts considerable emphasis on client service, operating
an IT infrastructure and customer service and sales operation that has served over 5 million
unique patients, representing over 1 in 4 Romanians.



The Company divides its operations into four business lines:

» Corporate: The Corporate business line offers HPP to corporate clients as part of their
employee benefit packages. These programmes, which focus on prevention through
regular check-ups and access to diagnostic services, complement the legally required
occupational health services that corporate clients also contract from MedLife under the
HPP offering.

* Clinics: The Clinics business line includes the Company's ambulatory clinics and
diagnostic imaging services. Clinics offer general practitioner and specialist
consultations and include the Company's 140 outpatient diagnostic imaging services.
Certain of its clinics also undertake day hospitalisation services.

» Laboratories: The Laboratories business line provides biochemistry, haematology,
coagulation, immunology, microbiology, anatomy, pathology, cytology, molecular
biology and toxicology laboratories tests.

* Hospitals: The Hospitals business line covers the Company's inpatient activities, which
consist of a wide range of medical and surgical specializations.

2. Developments in 2016
Organic growth

During 2016, the Med Life SA opened in Ploiesti the 17" Hyperclinic from MedLife portfolio. The
new unit offers patients investigation and treatment for 22 medical specialties, including
pediatrics, ENT, gastroenterology, orthopedics, dermatology, general surgery and
neurosurgery. The new facility covers an area of 700 square meters, is located on two levels
and includes 14 medical offices for consultations, clinical and laboratory investigations. The
medical team consists of more than 50 doctors and support staff.

Acquisitions completed in 2016
During 2016, the Med Life SA completed the purchase of;

- Dent Estet, which has provided to MedLife Group (“the Group”) a strong platform for
the further development of a standalone Stomatology business line, following the
opening of the Group’s first standalone stomatology clinic in May 2015. The acquisition
makes the Group the leader in this highly fragmented segment. The Group has already
identified and is assessing further potential acquisitions in the Stomatology business
line.

- Diamed Center, a laboratory operator, which is being used as a launching base for the
"Sfanta Maria" laboratories brand.

- Prima Medical, an imagistic center located in Craiova, which complements the Group's
existing footprint in the region.

- Stem Cells Bank, a complementary activity to the Group's maternity services. The
Group had previously outsourced this activity and the addition of Stem Cells Bank
allows the Group to capture additional revenue and profit.

- Centrul Medical Panduri S.A., a medical company operating two clinics and one
laboratory in Bucharest, which further expands the Group's position in Bucharest.



Credit facilities contracted by the Company
1. Club Loan

Med Life SA, together with Bahtco Invest SA, Accipiens SA and Policlinica de Diagnostic Rapid
SA ("PDR") (as borrowers) concluded on March 2, 2016 a Club Loan, a credit facility
agreement with a club of credit institutions composed of the Banca Comerciald Romand S.A.,
BRD - Groupe Société Générale S.A., ING Bank N.V. Amsterdam - Bucharest Branch and
Raiffeisen Bank S.A.. The financing parties have provided to borrowers three credit facilities
with maximum limits of EUR 48,764,589.89 and RON 27,000,000, as follows:

(a) Term facility in EUR, amounting to 28,764,589.98, allocated as follows:

- Up to EUR 15,711,008.29 to the Company,

- Up to EUR 972,937.81 to Accipiens,

- Up to EUR 6,486,252.13 to Bahtco Invest,

- Up to EUR 5,594,391.75 to PDR,

intended for the total refinancing of the sums owed by each of the above entities under a
credit facility agreement concluded with BCR on August 28, 2014,

(b) Revolving type facility in RON, amounting to RON 27,000,000, granted to the Company in
order to refinance in full the amounts owed by it under a credit facility agreement concluded
with BCR on August 28, 2014 and financing current needs of the Company;

(c) A term facility in euro, amounting to EUR 20,000,000, granted to the Company for the
acquisition of shareholdings in companies with similar or complementary activities to those of
borrowers (“Target companies covered by the Club Loan"), respectively, within EUR
3,000,000 to the Companies Targeted by the Club Loan that will join as borrowers to the credit
facility agreement to refinance their financial debts.

2. Loans from International Finance Corporation, a member of World Bank Group

The Company (as borrower) together with Accipiens SA, Bahtco Invest SA and PDR (as co-
debtors) concluded the term loan agreement dated September 30, 2016, in the maximum
amount of EUR 10,000,000 intended to finance the investment plan of the Company and of co-
borrowers to expand their operations, both organically and through acquisitions of holdings in
companies with activities similar or complementary to those of the borrowers.

3. Listing and Trading

Starting from 21th of December 2016, the shares issued by Med Life SA are traded on the
stock market managed by the Bucharest Stock Exchange, Premium Category, with the “M”
trading symbol.

The listing was made through the initial public offering initiated by V4C Eastern Europe Holding
V Limited and International Finance Corporation, member of the World Bank Group through
the sale of 8,840,480 ordinary shares owned by the selling shareholders, as follows : a number
of 7,283,360 Shares owned by V4C Eastern Europe Holdings V Limited and a number of up to
1,557,120 Shares owned by International Finance Corporation.



5. Corporate governance

The corporate governance statement

During 11 months of 2016, the shares were not admitted to trading on a regulated market.
Thus, the Company was required to comply with corporate governance regime established
mainly by the Companies Law.

The Company and its board members comply with the corporate governance regime
established by the Companies Law with the following exceptions:

s The Company has not entered into management contracts with current members of the
Board of Directors and mandate contracts with executive managers. Some executive
managers have concluded fabour contracts. According to the Companies Law, labour
contracts concluded by members of the Board of Directors or executive managers are
suspended during the period in which such persons hold this position;

» Because some members of the Board of Directors and some executive managers hold
various positions in the administration, management or control bodies in the
subsidiaries of the Company, any lending by the Company to such subsidiaries can be
considered a loan by the Company to its directors which is prohibited under the
Companies Law;

s Because some members of the Board of Directors and some executive managers hold
various positions in the administration, management or control bodies in the
subsidiaries of the Company and other positions within the Company (e.g. executive
managers, legal advisors, employees) there is the possibility of occurrence of conflicts
of interests.

As of 4 January 2016, a new corporate governance code issued by the Bucharest Stock
Exchange entered into force and is applicable to all issuers of securities traded on the spot
regulated market operated by the Bucharest Stock Exchange. The new Corporate Governance
Code is be applicable to the Company after the admission of its shares to trading on the spot
regulated market managed by the Bucharest Stock Exchange.

The Company intends to take measures to ensure that within a 12-month period as of the
admission of shares on the spot regulated market operated by the Bucharest Stock Exchange,
at least two independent members will be appointed in the Board of Directors.

1. Shareholding structure

The shareholders’ structure as of December 31, 2016 is presented below:

No. of shares % Value
Marcu Mihail 4,219,320 21.00% 1,054,830
Marcu Nicolae 3,013,800 15.00% 753,450
Cristescu Mihaela Gabriela 3,013,800 15.00% 753,450
Other shareholders 9,845,080 49.00% 2,461,270
TOTAL 20,092,000 100% 5,023,000

Information regarding shareholders’ rights is public and can be found in the published
Prospectus of the Company.



2. Company Management

The Company is managed in one tier system by the Board of Directors that delegated
management of the Company to the managers. The Board of Directors consists of seven (7)
members appointed by the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for a term of 4 years,
with the possibility of re-election for subsequent 4 years terms of office. The Chairman and
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors are elected by the Board of Directors among its
members.

The Board of Directors is responsible for all useful and necessary acts to fulfil the object of
activity of the Company, except for the duties that are allocated by law to the shareholders’
meetings.

Board of Directors
As at the date of December 31, 2016, the Board of Directors consists of the following
members:

Name Date of Birth Title

Mihail Marcu 30.09.1970 Member and Chairman of the
Board of Directors

Mihaela-Gabriela Cristescu 28.02.1942 Member of the Board of
Directors

Ton Nicolae Scorei 22.12.1974 Member of the Board of
Directors

Dimitrie Pelinescu-Onciul 11.08.1947 Member of the Board of
Directors

Dorin Preda 03.04.1976 Member of the Board of
Directors

Marius-Leonard Gherghina 21.02.1964 Member of the Board of
Directors

Nicolae Marcu 26.10.1968 Member of the Board of
Directors

The venue where the members of the Board of Directors carry out their duties is the registered
office of the Company.

Executives

The individuals holding positions of executive manager in the Company as at December 31,
2016 or the persons to whom management of the Company has been delegated pursuant to
the Articles of Association, are presented in the table below. As at December 31, 2016, all
these persons fulfil these functions based on labour contracts of indefinite duration, although,
according to the applicable law, while holding the position of executive manager, labour
contracts are suspended, and the Company is obliged to conclude with the executive managers
mandate contracts. The executive managers carry out their duties at the registered office of
the Company.

Name Title

Mihail Marcu Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Nicolae Marcu Chief Healthcare and Operations Officer
Dorin Preda Chief Finance and Treasury
Adrian Lungu Chief Financial Officer

Adrian Stanese Human Resoource Manager
Geanina Durigu Laboratory Manager

Mariana Brates Purchasing Manager
Mihai-Stelian Varciu Medical Manager

Vera Firu Accounting and Tax Manager
Mirela Dogaru Corporate Manager




3. Internal Control

MedlLife established a system of internal control. Internal control is an activity of objective and
independent evaluation with consultative purpose performed in order to increase value added
and improving the activity of the Company.

Internal control supports the Company to reach the objectives agreed upon through systematic
and disciplined approach of evaluation and improvement of risk management efficiency,
internal controls systems efficiency and general management efficiency.

The objectives of the internal control are:

Assessment and evaluation of the accuracy of realized tasks

Evaluation of conformity with internal procedures

Detection of inefficiency, waste, abuse and other irregularities

Presentation to the Board of Directors of objective information from areas covered by

internal control and of recommendations in order to eliminate identified issues and

follow-up

* Rendering of services in terms of assessments, evaluations, recommendations for the
Board of Directors

The Company’s internal control checked: compliance with the laws in force; application of the
decisions made by the management; good operation of the internal activity; efficient use of
resources; prevention and control of the risk of failing to reach the goals set; ensuring an
accounting management and financial monitoring of the Company’s activities.

Internal control is applicable:
e prior to conducting the operations, upon the preparation of the budget, which would
allow subsequently to conducting the operations, the budget control;
» during the operations and after their completion, a case where it is analysed the
profitability of the operations and it is ascertained the existence of the conformity or
possible irregularities, which need to be adjusted.

6. Risk exposures
Capital risk

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, which includes borrowings from bank
and IFC and also financial leasing, cash and cash equivalents and equity, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Company’s risk management reviews the capital structure regularly. As a part of this
review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the Company will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.



Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to
domestic and international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating
to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyses exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company conducts its business and makes transactions expressed in various currencies.
As at December 31, 2016 the exchange rate was of 4.3033 RON for 1 USD and of 4.5411 RON
for 1 EUR. As at December 31, 2015 the exchange rate was of RON 4.1477 for 1 USD and of
RON 4.5245 for 1 EUR.

Management analyzes the exposure to currency risks.
Credit risk

The financial assets that might expose the Company to a credit risk concentration mainly
consist of receivables (trade receivables and similar receivables). Given the large number of
clients of the Company, credit risk is rather limited.

Liquidity risk

The Company’s policy is to maintain sufficient liquidities to pay for its obligations when such
become due.

Fiscal environment

The taxation system in Romania is still developing and is subject to various interpretations and
constant changes, which may sometimes be retroactive. Although the actual tax due for a
transaction may be minimum, delay interests may be significant, as they can be calculated at
the value of the transaction and at a rate of 0.03% per day (interest) and 0.02% (penalties)
per day in 2015, Starting with January 2016, the level of interest charged was reduced to
0.02% per day and the level of penalties charged was reduced 0.01% per day.

In Romania the statute of limitation for tax controls (audits) is of 5 years. Management
believes that the tax obligations included in these financial statements are adequate.

Transfer pricing

The fiscal legislation from Romania includes the “market value” principle, according to which
the transactions between related parties have to be performed at the market value. The local
tax payers, who carry transactions with related parties, have to prepare and make available to
the tax authorities from Romania, at their written request, the transfer pricing documentation
file. If the companies do not prepare the documentation or they present an incomplete transfer
pricing file may attract penalties for non-conformity, and additionally to the information
presented in the transfer pricing file, the fiscal authorities may have a different interpretation
of the transactions and the circumstances compared to the management’s assessment and, as
a result, they may impose additional fiscal obligations as a result of adjusting transfer prices.
The management of the Company is confident that, if required, they will submit the necessary
information in due time to the fiscal authorities. The transactions with related parties and
group companies are performed based on the market value principle.



Litigation
The Company is involved in various litigations as part of normal course of business.

Management has assessed the legal status together with the Company’s legal advisors and all
necessary adjustments have been recorded in the financial statements.

7. Subsequent events

Med Life SA purchased a building located in Banu Manta Street from Telekom and performed a
sale and leaseback through financial leasing.

Med Life SA signed the Sales Purchase Agreement for the acquisition of shares/social parts of
the share capital of the following companies:

o 80% of share capital of Almina Trading SRL
o 100% of share capital in Anima Speciality Medical Services SRL.

Neither transaction has been closed by the approval of the financial statements.

There were no other significant subsequent events after December 31, 2016,

Mihail Marcu,
Administrator




